
Notice of Meeting
District Planning Committee
Thursday, 15th December, 2016 at 
6.30 pm
in Council Chamber  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury
Members Interests
Note:  If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on 
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda:  Wednesday, 7 December 2016

FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
Plans relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting can be viewed in the 
Council Chamber, Market Street, Newbury between 5.30pm and 6.30pm on the day of the 
meeting.

No new information may be produced to Committee on the night (this does not prevent 
applicants or objectors raising new points verbally). If objectors or applicants wish to introduce 
new additional material they must provide such material to planning officers at least 5 clear 
working days before the meeting (in line with the Local Authorities (Access to Meetings and 
Documents) (Period of Notice) (England) Order 2002).

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents referred to 
in Part I reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planapps@westberks.gov.uk 

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the Council’s 
website at www.westberks.gov.uk 

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Linda Pye on (01635) 519052 
Email: linda.pye@westberks.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:planapps@westberks.gov.uk
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/
mailto:linda.pye@westberks.gov.uk


Agenda - District Planning Committee to be held on Thursday, 15 December 2016 
(continued)

To: Councillors Pamela Bale, Jeff Beck, Paul Bryant, Keith Chopping, Hilary Cole 
(Chairman), Richard Crumly, Clive Hooker, Alan Law, Alan Macro, 
Graham Pask (Vice-Chairman), Anthony Pick and Garth Simpson

Substitutes: Councillors Lee Dillon, Billy Drummond, Mollie Lock and Virginia von Celsing

Agenda
Part I Page No.

1.   Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2.   Minutes 5 - 42
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this Committee 
held on 28th September 2016.

3.   Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any 
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests in items on the 
agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4.   Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right 
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and 
participation in individual applications).

(1)    Application No. & Parish: 16/01489/OUTMAJ Land at Coley Farm, 
Stoney Lane, Cold Ash

43 - 80

Proposal: Erection of 75 dwellings with associated access and 
open space improvements

Location: Land at Coley Farm, Cold Ash

Applicant: Donnington New Homes

Recommendation: That the District Planning Committee GRANT 
planning permission to planning application 
16/01489/OUTMAJ, subject to the first completion of 
the required s106 obligation to deliver the required  
affordable units on the site, the s278 highways 
works, and the public open space commuted sums,  
with the conditions as noted on the agenda reports 
and update sheet

http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0


Agenda - District Planning Committee to be held on Thursday, 15 December 2016 
(continued)

Items for Information

5.   Plans and Drawings

Andy Day
Head of Strategic Support

If you require this information in a different format or translation, please contact 
Moira Fraser on telephone (01635) 519045.



This page is intentionally left blank



DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 28 SEPTEMBER 2016

Councillors Present: Jeff Beck, Paul Bryant, Hilary Cole (Chairman), Richard Crumly, 
Clive Hooker, Marigold Jaques (Substitute) (In place of Graham Pask), Alan Law, Alan Macro, 
Tim Metcalfe (Substitute) (In place of Pamela Bale), Anthony Pick and Garth Simpson

Also Present: Michael Butler (Principal Planning Officer), Derek Carnegie (Team Leader - 
Development Control), Sarah Clarke (Legal Services Manager) and Paul Goddard (Team 
Leader - Highways Development Control), Stephen Chard (Policy Officer), Councillor Gordon 
Lundie (Council Member) and Linda Pye (Principal Policy Officer)

Apologies: Councillor Pamela Bale, Councillor Keith Chopping and Councillor Graham Pask

PART I

12. Minutes
The Minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2016 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Chairman, subject to the following amendments:
Item 11 (1) – 16/01034/OUTMAJ – Land opposite Hall Place Farm Stables, Sulham 
Hill
Page five of the minutes, penultimate paragraph, first sentence:
In summary Bryan Lyttle advised Members that there were a substantial number of other 
appeals coming forward and based on the first two days of the Examination where the 
OAN was being questioned, and also as a result of the Firland’s appeal decision in which 
the Inspector agreed with the proposals there that a figure of 833 dwellings per annum 
should be used, it could be considered that all the site allocations in the HSA DPD were 
at risk from being excluded by a Planning Inspector and therefore the figure would go 
down to between 5.7 and 4.4 years. 
Page eleven of the minutes, first paragraph, second sentence:
It was a different type of allocation but he agreed that the principle was not the same. 
Page thirteen of the minutes, first paragraph, final sentence:
However, if the Committee refused planning permission, an appeal could be lodged 
by the applicant. If planning permission was granted, then a Judicial Review could 
be requested by the objectors. The question was what would be best for the Council. 
Item 11 (4) – 16/00971/OUTD – Delamere Stables, Baydon Road, Lambourn
The declaration of interest for Councillor Jeff Beck was removed as this did not apply to 
this planning application. 

13. Declarations of Interest
Councillors Anthony Pick and Jeff Beck declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(1), but 
reported that, as their interest was personal and not prejudicial, a registerable interest or 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2.



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

a disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and 
vote on the matter.
Councillors Paul Bryant and Jeff Beck declared an interest in Agenda Item 4(3), but 
reported that, as their interest was personal and not prejudicial, a registerable interest or 
a disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and 
vote on the matter.

14. Schedule of Planning Applications

(1) Application No. & Parish: 16/00657/FULEXT Land at former Travis 
Perkins site, Mill Lane, Newbury

(Councillors Jeff Beck and Anthony Pick declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 4(3) 
by virtue of the fact that they were Members of Newbury Town Council and its Planning 
and Highways Committee. Councillors Beck and Pick had been present when this item 
was discussed, but made it clear that they would consider the application afresh. As their 
interest was personal and not prejudicial, registerable or a disclosable pecuniary interest, 
they determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.)
(Councillor Jeff Beck advised that he had been lobbied on Agenda Item 4(1)). 
The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 6(3)) concerning Planning Application 
16/00657/FULEXT in respect of the proposed conversion of extant permission of B1(a) 
office use to 22 dwellings, 11 of which were to be affordable, associated access and 
parking.
The Planning Officer confirmed that this application had previously been considered at 
the Western Area Planning Committee meeting on 10th August 2016. The item had also 
been deferred from the District Planning Committee meeting on 30th August 2016 due to 
lack of time to consider the application. 
Policy CS9 in the Core Strategy 2006 to 2026 was an employment protection designation 
on the land in question. This meant that essentially non-employment generating 
developments, such as housing, would not be permitted, unless exceptional 
circumstances pertained. In this application, housing was being promoted by the 
Developer. Accordingly the application, if approved, would be contrary to policy CS9 and 
so would comprise a departure from the Development Plan. In this particular case, both 
officers and the Western Area Planning Committee were recommending to the District 
Planning Committee, that the application be approved because, within the application, 
whilst it was duly acknowledged that an approval would mean the loss of employment 
land in the future, and so be contrary to policy CS9, the planning gain of the additional 11 
affordable units [50% rate rather than  the normal 30% rate advised in policy CS6] was 
sufficient to set aside the underlying policy objection and loss of employment land. 
The application site was currently vacant land adjacent to an existing housing 
development of 37 dwellings, now completed and occupied, to the south. The site 
abutted Mill Lane to the north and would derive access from that route. It was proposed 
to erect 22 dwellings on the site up to three storeys in height, 11 of which were to be 
affordable [50%]. It would be associated with 44 parking spaces, [two per unit] with three 
visitor spaces adjoining the principal roadway into the site. The buildings would be 
relatively contemporary in design as the elevations indicated. No external open space 
was to be provided, but bin stores and cycle stores would be laid out on the site. All the 
dwellings in addition, would be two bedroomed. All would be flats apart from one 2 bed 
townhouse. It was noted that if this application was approved this would mean that the 
extant permission for offices would not be constructed. Application 13/00835/FULEXT 

Page 6



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

was however finally approved by the Council for part development of the site for 37 
dwellings [with 11 affordable units] but with 1500m2 of B1a space on the current 
application site. The approval of this contained a condition regarding phasing which 
sought to ensure that prior to the dwellings being completed, the permitted offices would 
be built out ready for occupation. Application 14/01096/COMIND was subsequently 
approved which involved a revised office design [still of 1500m2] with an associated nine 
affordable dwellings being part of the original 37 dwelling scheme as permitted above. 
This was approved, also with a Condition [21] which had the effect of ensuring the office 
completion prior to the completion of the nine affordable dwellings. This was not however 
achieved. Accordingly a s73A application was submitted to rectify this situation by the 
deletion of Condition 21. This was accepted by Council Officers on the basis that to do 
otherwise would have resulted in the nine affordable dwellings being held vacant for an 
indeterminate period. [14/02296/FULEXT]. This approval did not affect the validity of the 
office permission which still remained automatically extant in perpetuity, by virtue of the 
nine dwelling completion. This remained the case up to the present. 
Paragraph 22 of the NPPF advised Local Planning Authorities to avoid the long term 
protection of employment sites, where there was no reasonable prospect of a site being 
used for that purpose. The application site comprised a policy CS9 site which allowed for 
employment uses only to be permitted, unless an exceptional case could be made. In this 
instance, it was recognised that whilst housing was being provided, on site, the following 
as apposite:
1. The site in physical terms was virtually surrounded now by housing as the Committee 

site visit had evidenced. 
2. The site was brown field in a highly sustainable location adjacent the town centre of 

Newbury, being a short walking/cycling distance away - circa 400m. It was thus 
entirely appropriate for residential uses.

3. The form of the new building was considered to be acceptable in 
design/amenity/physical terms, having regard to the adjacent buildings and uses. 

4. It was the planning policy issue which was the most important issue under CS9 to be 
considered.

The Highways Officer stated that there would be less traffic generated with this proposal 
than would be generated from an office development. The proposal also complied with 
parking standards and layout and therefore no highways objections had been raised. 
Councillor Anthony Pick asked what the implications would be in setting a precedent for 
land west of Mill Lane and commercial applications as a whole elsewhere in the district. 
The Planning Officer confirmed that there would be some risk of a precedent being set 
but he was of the opinion that that had already been set with the approval of the Sterling 
Cables site and the Planning Inspector allowing the Faraday Road application. The 
provision of 50% affordable housing on the site was an exception and was the reason 
why Officers were recommending approval of the application. Councillor Alan Law added 
that each individual site would have to be considered on its own merits and it was his 
understanding that no precedent would be set where exceptions could be made. 
Councillor Hilary Cole reminded the Committee of the three reasons that an application 
would be referred up to the District Planning Committee as follows:

 A possible conflict with a policy that would undermine the Local Plan or the Local 
Development Framework;

 A district-wide public interest; or

 The possibility of claims for significant costs against the Council.

Page 7



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr. Simon Kirk and Mr. Ross Freeman, 
applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application.
Mr. Freeman in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The proposal was for 22 residential dwellings;

 There was a lot of planning history to the site with David Wilson Homes had 
acquiring the site in 2007. An application had been submitted in 2013 for 
redevelopment of the site for 37 dwellings and office space and this was approved 
in February 2014. In 2014 approval was given for the erection of 1500m2 of B1a 
space plus 9 affordable units. However, no interest had been shown for the office 
space and therefore a s73A application had been submitted to remove Condition 21 
(phasing). As there was a surplus of office accommodation in the Newbury area a 
further application had been submitted for 22 units and this was the proposal which 
was being considered that evening;

 Negotiations had taken place with the Council’s Planning Officers in respect of the 
application;

 The proposal included two parking spaces per dwelling plus three spaces for 
visitors;

 Mill Lane had a 7.5 tonne weight limit which restricted the use of the site;

 There was a Government drive for more new homes to be built;

 This was a sustainable vacant brownfield site and should planning permission be 
granted construction would commence in January 2017.  

Councillor Alan Macro referred to the statement that Mill Lane had a 7.5 tonne weight 
restriction and he queried how that would affect an office development. Mr. Simon Kirk 
replied that vans and lorries would need to deliver to the offices and the weight restriction 
would have an impact. Whilst this was not the sole reason for lack of interest in the office 
development it was a contributory factor. 
In considering the above application Members referred to the issue around setting a 
precedent. Councillor Jeff Beck noted that nearby Windsor Court had over 100 units and 
therefore the presumption for residential development in this area had already been set. 
Councillor Paul Bryant felt that the site was already surrounded by housing and the 
Inspector would probably allow the development in any event if it went to appeal. It was 
necessary to consider the local circumstances when determining the application and he 
felt that an update to the Local Plan was required in relation to employment land. 
Councillor Anthony Pick supported the proposal and therefore proposed that the 
application should be approved in line with the Officer recommendation. This was 
seconded by Councillor Richard Crumly. 
Councillor Alan Law was supportive of the application but asked for assurance that the 
Council would receive the 50% affordable housing and he asked if this could be made 
clear in an informative. The Legal Officer confirmed that this would be included in the 
s106 legal agreement which would be completed prior to the planning permission being 
granted. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to grant planning 
permission with a s106 obligation attached to achieve the 50% affordable housing and 
subject to the following conditions:
Conditions

Page 8



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

1.   The development shall be commenced within three years of the date of this 
permission and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against the advice in the DMPO of 2015. 

2. The Development shall be carried out in strict accord with the following plan 
numbers -H3642/ 100 ReV D, h3642/rp/04/Rev A, H3642/RP/05 Rev A, 
H3642/AH/01. 
Reason: To clarify the planning permission in accord with the DMPO of 2015.

3. No development shall commence until details of floor levels in relation to existing 
and proposed ground levels have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved levels.
Reason: To ensure a satisfactory relationship between the proposed building and 
the adjacent land in accordance with policy CS14 in the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006 to 2026. 

4. The hours of work for all contractors (and sub-contractors) for the duration of the 
site development shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, be limited to; 7.30 am to 6.00 pm on Mondays to Fridays, 7.30 am to 1.00 
pm on Saturdays, and NO work shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding residents in accordance 
with policy CS14 in the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026.

5. No development shall take place until details of the provision for the storage of 
refuse and recycling materials for the dwellings have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall not be 
brought into use until the refuse facilities have been provided in accordance with the 
approved details and shall be retained for this purpose thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe refuse/recycling facilities within 
the site.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (March 2012), Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026), and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 
(June 2006).

6. No development shall commence until the applicant has submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority a scheme of works, or other steps as may be necessary to 
minimise the effects of dust from the development. Development shall not 
commence until written approval has been given by the Local Planning Authority to 
any such scheme of works.
Reason: In the interests of amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accord with the 
advice in the NPPF of 2012. 

7. No development shall commence until a scheme of sound insulation has been  
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme 
shall provide for the sound insulation of the dwellings against all sources of external 
noise and the scheme shall be implemented before the development is first 
occupied. This relates in particular to the bus depot to the east of the application 
site.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the occupants of the building and in 
accordance with saved policy OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 
1991-2006.

Page 9



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

8. The development shall not be occupied until a 1.8m high imperforate wall has been 
erected along the whole of the eastern boundary of the site in accordance with 
details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The approved wall shall thereafter be retained and maintained at the height and 
position as approved.
Reason: To protect the amenity and privacy of the occupiers of adjoining properties 
(from noise) in accord with policy OVS6 in the West Berkshire District Local Plan 
1991 to 2006. 

9. Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than 
that required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must 
not commence until the points 1 to 4 below have been complied with. If unexpected 
contamination is found after development has begun, development must be halted 
on that part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination to the extent 
specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until condition 4 has been 
complied with in relation to that contamination. 

10. Site Characterisation 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with 
the planning application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to 
assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it 
originates on the site. The contents of the scheme are subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must 
be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include: 
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

- human health, 
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 

woodland and service lines and pipes, 
- adjoining land, 
- groundwater and surface waters, 
- ecological systems, 
- archeological sites and ancient monuments; 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 

11. Submission of Remediation Scheme 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the 
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other 
property and the natural and historical environment must be prepared, and is 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must 
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and 
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 

Page 10



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the 
land after remediation. 

12. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms 
prior to the commencement of development other than that required to carry out 
remediation, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of 
commencement of the remediation scheme works. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a 
verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out 
must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

13. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing 
immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment 
must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 1, and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of condition 2, which is subject to the approval in writing of 
the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a 
verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of 
the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 3. 

If required:
14. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance 

A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term 
effectiveness of the proposed remediation over a period to be agreed with LPA, and 
the provision of reports on the same must be prepared, both of which are subject to 
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the 
remediation objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced, and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be 
carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors. In accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012. 

15. No development shall commence until samples of the materials to be used in the 
proposed development have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This condition shall apply irrespective of any indications as to 
the details that may have been submitted with the application, and shall where 
necessary include the submission of samples of glass, plastic and mortar materials. 
Thereafter the materials used in the development shall be in accordance with the 
approved samples. 

Page 11



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity in accordance with Policy CS14 in the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy of 2006 to 2026.

16. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The 
statement shall provide for:
(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 

displays and facilities for public viewing
(e) Wheel washing facilities
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policies CS5 and CS13 of the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire 
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007). 

17. As a first development operation, the vehicular, pedestrian/cycle access and 
associated engineering operations shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved drawing(s).
Reason: In the interest of highway safety.   This condition is imposed in accordance 
with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

18. The clearance height within the undercroft shall not be less than 2.6m.
Reason: To ensure public safety in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.

19. No dwelling shall be occupied until the vehicle parking and/or turning space have 
been surfaced, marked out and provided in accordance with the approved plan(s).  
The parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking (of 
private motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.
Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in 
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road 
safety and the flow of traffic.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire 
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

20. No development shall take place until details of the cycle parking and storage space 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
No dwelling shall be occupied until the cycle parking and storage space has been 
provided in accordance with the approved details and retained for this purpose at all 
times. 
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe cycle storage space within the 
site. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 

Page 12



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007).

Informatives:
1. The development shall be started within three years from the date of this permission 

and implemented strictly in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason:  To enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the 
development against Policy DP5 of the Berkshire Structure Plan 2001-2016 and 
Policy OVS2 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991 - 2006 should it not be 
started within a reasonable time.

2. This planning permission must be read in conjunction with a s106 legal agreement 
dated the vvvvv. You are advised to make yourself aware of the contents.

(2) Application No. & Parish: 16/00971/OUTD Delamere Stables, 
Baydon Road, Lambourn

The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(2)) concerning Planning Application 
16/00971/OUTD in respect of an outline application for demolition of existing dwelling 
and erection of three dwellings. Matters to be considered: access and layout.
The Planning Officer, Derek Carnegie, confirmed that this application had previously 
been considered at the Western Area Planning Committee meeting on 20th July 2016. 
The site was located outside of a settlement boundary as defined by the Local Plan 
Proposals map and was therefore located in open countryside. The Council was able to 
demonstrate a five year housing land supply in accordance with paragraphs 47-49 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). Accordingly the relevant policies relating to 
the supply of housing were deemed to be up to date and could be given full weight. The 
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, sought to direct new development in 
accordance with the settlement pattern with most development taking place within 
settlements defined within the hierarchy as directed by Area Delivery Plan Policy 1 
(ADPP1). The explanatory text to Policy HSG.1 West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved 
Policies 2007 stated that outside settlement boundaries, development would only be 
acceptable in exceptional circumstances. Policy CS1 of the Core Strategy stated that 
new homes would be primarily developed on: suitable previously developed land within 
boundaries, other suitable land within settlements, strategic sites and broad locations 
identified on the Core Strategy Key Diagram and land allocated through the Housing Site 
Allocations Development Plan Document (HSA DPD). The Proposed Submission Version 
of the HSA DPD had been submitted for examination (commencing June 2016).  It was 
therefore at an advanced stage of preparation. Policy C1 of the draft West Berkshire 
Council Proposed Submission HSA DPD stated that there was a presumption against 
new residential development outside of settlement boundaries, exceptions to this were 
limited to rural exception housing schemes, conversion of redundant buildings, housing 
to accommodate rural workers and extensions to or replacement of existing residential 
units. It was noted the proposed site was still outside of the revised settlement 
boundaries as a result of housing allocations.
The proposed three dwellings did not meet with these criteria and as such their proposal 
was not in conformity with the current statutory development plan which comprised 
policies in the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, July 2012, those saved 
policies within the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006, Saved Policies 2007 
and the Proposed HSA DPD.

Page 13



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

In summary, Mr Carnegie gave the Officer view that the decision of the Western Area 
Planning Committee to grant conditional planning permission would comprise a departure 
from current West Berkshire Council Planning Policy. It was important that development 
in the district was plan led. 
Councillor Alan Law referred to the conclusion of the District Planning Committee report 
and specifically the view described of the Western Area Planning Committee that the 
application should be approved given the benefits it would provide. He queried these 
benefits and the exceptional grounds for approval by the Western Area Planning 
Committee contrary to planning policy. Mr Carnegie responded that Western Committee 
Members felt that the site’s close location to the Lambourn settlement and the village 
centre added weight in favour of the application as did the view that it would be beneficial 
to erect these dwellings alongside the stables. However, Mr Carnegie reiterated the 
Officer view that this proposal was clearly contrary to planning policy. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr Mark Campbell, applicant/agent, 
addressed the Committee on this application.
Mr Campbell in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 He disagreed with the position stated by the Planning Officer and in the report that 
the proposal was contrary to the Council’s planning policies. Mr Campbell stated 
that the proposal was in accordance with the Spatial Strategy of the Council’s 
Core Strategy: Area Delivery Plan Policy 1 (ADPP1) which allowed development 
within or adjacent to settlement boundaries. This site was clearly adjacent to 
Lambourn’s settlement boundary and formed part of Lambourn village, it was in a 
sustainable location and was close to Lambourn’s amenities. 

 The Western Area Planning Committee had considered that the site formed part of 
the Lambourn settlement. 

 There were other established Lambourn properties that were not within the 
settlement boundary. 

 Planning Officers had also recommended refusal of the application due to the 
impact on the character and appearance of the AONB (Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty). However, the site was already developed, the racing yard was 
already in existence and this proposed development would not impact any further 
on the AONB. The impact on the AONB was not therefore a reason on which to 
refuse planning permission. 

Councillor Anthony Pick asked Mr Campbell for his views on the points made by the 
Planning Officer and in the Officer’s report that the dwellings and their design would be 
detrimental to the appearance and character of the area. In response, Mr Campbell made 
the point that existing, adjacent dwellings were terraced as proposed with this 
application. The proposed layout was therefore compatible with the existing pattern of 
development in the area. Detailed debate in relation to design would come at the 
reserved matters stage and not for this outline application, however Mr Campbell pointed 
out that the current building was of a bulky structure and there were therefore no 
concerns of increased massing on the site arising from the development. 
Councillor Alan Macro queried whether the existing stable blocks would be demolished. 
Mr Campbell clarified that approval had already been granted to demolish and then 
construct new stable blocks within the racing yard and this was not part of this 
application. 
Councillor Gordon Lundie, speaking as Ward Member, made the following points:

Page 14



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

 He was also speaking on behalf of his fellow Ward Member, Councillor Graham 
Jones, and they were both in support of this planning application. 

 He had lived for many years on Baydon Road in Lambourn and was therefore very 
familiar with this site, its surrounding area, traffic levels etc. This site was indeed on 
the edge of Lambourn. 

 This proposal for three dwellings was a decrease from the four dwellings application 
which had previously been refused by the Council. In addition to this reduction, 
Planning Officers had been consulted and negotiated with at length on the outline 
application and this had been productive. It was Councillor Lundie’s expectation that 
this collaboration would continue for the full application. 

 The site was in need of renewal. 

 There was a significant housing need in the area and this well situated Brownfield 
site was more favourable for development than alternative Greenfield sites. 

 The site’s close proximity to Lambourn (a rural service centre) meant it was 
sustainable. The centre of Lambourn and its amenities were within walking distance. 
Traffic issues were not a factor. 

 Councillor Lundie was surprised to discover that this site fell outside of the settlement 
boundary/the red line and while he understood the need for these boundaries, in this 
case the proposed development was located near to a housing development and 
next to other terraced dwellings. 

 Councillor Lundie felt that these points gave justification for planning permission 
adjacent to the settlement boundary and hoped that permission could be granted. 

 Approval would achieve a small windfall gain in housing.
Councillor Hilary Cole noted that as an outline application the final planning application 
might not take the same form and she queried whether development of the existing 
substantial property into apartments would do more to help meet the housing need 
mentioned in the area. Councillor Lundie was unable to respond on how far the final 
application would differ from the outline application. 
Councillor Jeff Beck commented that he was familiar with the site and the village 
settlement boundary in no way aligned with the actual housing situation. Development of 
the site would enable improvements to the stables and provide much needed housing. 
Councillor Beck added that he had taken the additional points made at this meeting into 
account, alongside the debate held at the Western Area Planning Committee, and 
proposed that conditional planning permission be granted contrary to the Officer 
recommendation. Councillor Paul Bryant seconded the proposal. 
Councillor Macro asked Officers to comment on the point made by the applicant that the 
Council’s planning policies allowed development adjacent to a settlement boundary. Mr 
Carnegie agreed that ADPP1 did state that most developments would be within or 
adjacent to settlement boundaries. However, he added that acceptance of all planning 
applications that were adjacent to settlement boundaries would be cause for concern and 
would impact on the Council’s ability to be a plan led authority. 
Councillor Richard Crumly was supportive of the Officer view. This site was located 
external to the settlement boundary and in open countryside, it was therefore not 
acceptable. Decisions needed to be consistent with the Council’s own policies. 
Councillor Law stated that the Council’s policies and rules were in place for a reason. 
Acceptance of properties adjacent to settlement boundaries was noted in the Core 

Page 15



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Strategy, but it was important for development in West Berkshire to be development 
control/plan led. Councillor Law felt that exceptional circumstances were needed to grant 
developments that were contrary to planning policy. In this case, exceptional 
circumstances were stated as the site’s location adjacent to the settlement boundary, 
closely located and comparable residential development and this being a tired site in 
need of renovation. Councillor Law accepted these points but added that the same could 
be said of sites in many areas of the district. 
The view had also been expressed that this site already formed part of Lambourn, 
Councillor Law noted this but added that there was a need for a boundary line. He 
suggested that the applicant could request a settlement boundary review that might 
support development of this site. To summarise, Councillor Law was in agreement with 
the Officer viewpoint. 
Councillor Paul Bryant commented that planning was not an exact science and each 
planning application needed to be considered on its own merits. This included 
consideration of whether there were exceptional grounds to accept an application 
contrary to planning policy. He then referred to some of the points made in the Officer’s 
report that gave reasons why this application was contrary to policy and challenged 
these. 
Paragraph 6.1.9 of the report stated that the proposed development was unsustainable. 
Councillor Bryant questioned this as the site was located approximately 200 yards from 
Lambourn’s centre and shops. 
Paragraph 6.2.2 referred to guidance from the NPPF that advised against new isolated 
homes in the countryside. Councillor Bryant did not accept this site was in an isolated 
location. There was already housing/stables on the site and there was also housing on 
two sides of Delamere Stables. 
Paragraphs 6.2.3 and 6.2.6 gave the Officer view that the proposal and its design would 
not significantly enhance the character and appearance of the immediate area, but 
Councillor Bryant felt that it was difficult to consider these factors with an outline planning 
application. 
Councillor Bryant was willing to support the recommendation to grant planning 
permission on balance, hence he had seconded the proposal. 
Councillor Garth Simpson queried whether the proposed dwellings could be considered 
as a windfall gain. Councillor Cole clarified that, if approved, the dwellings would not 
constitute windfall, rather it was redevelopment of an existing site. 
Councillor Clive Hooker added his view that the site was sustainable when considering its 
location and the close proximity of existing housing. He supported the proposal to grant 
planning permission. 
Councillor Cole reiterated to Members that this application conflicted with the Council’s 
planning policies and asked Members to consider whether approval would undermine 
these policies. She also pointed out that as part of the HSA DPD process, a number of 
settlement boundary reviews were conducted. However, the Lambourn settlement 
boundary was not reviewed and therefore the site for this planning application would 
remain outside of the settlement boundary. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:

Page 16



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Conditions
1.   Details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereafter called the 

reserved matters) shall be submitted the Local Planning Authority for approval 
before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.   The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than two 
years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval of 
different dates, the final approval of the last such matter to be approved, whichever 
is the later.
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act (as 
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

3.   The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved drawing number 1543 03F received on 7th April 2016.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

4.   No development shall take place until a schedule of the materials to be used in the 
construction of the external surfaces of the dwellings and hard surfaced areas 
hereby permitted has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This condition shall apply irrespective of any indications as to 
these matters which have been detailed in the current application.  Samples of the 
materials shall be made available for inspection on request. Thereafter the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved materials.
Reason:   To ensure that the external materials are visually attractive and respond 
to local character.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 
2006.

5.   No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. The 
statement shall provide for:
a. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
b. Loading and unloading of plant and materials;
c. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
d. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 

displays and facilities for public viewing;
e. Wheel washing facilities;
f. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction;
g. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works. 
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS 5 and CS 13 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Policy TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District 
Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

Page 17



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

6.   The detailed layout of the site shall comply with the Local Planning Authority's 
standards in respect of road and footpath design and vehicle parking and turning 
provision. This condition shall apply notwithstanding any indications to these 
matters which have been given in the current application. 
Reason: In the interest of road safety and flow of traffic. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policy CS 13 of the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy TRANS.1 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

7.   No development shall take place until details of the proposed access(es) into the 
site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, including swept path analysis for 11.2 metre refuse collection vehicle. As 
a first development operation, the vehicular, pedestrian/cycle access and 
associated engineering operations shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved drawing(s).
Reason: To ensure that the access(es) into the site are constructed before the 
approved buildings in the interest of road safety. This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS 13 and 
CS 14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, and TRANS.1 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

8.   No development shall take place until details of the cycle parking and storage space 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No 
dwelling shall be occupied until the cycle parking and storage has been provided in 
accordance with the approved details and retained for this purpose at all times.
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe cycle storage space within the 
site. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012, Policy CS 13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2012, and 
TRANS.1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

9.   No development shall take place until details of the provision for the storage of 
refuse and recycling materials for the dwellings have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No dwelling shall be occupied 
until the refuse and recycling facilities have been provided in accordance with the 
approved details and shall be retained for this purpose thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that there is adequate and safe refuse/recycling facilities within 
the site.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2012, Policies CS 13 and CS 14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
2006-2026, and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 2006.

10.  No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:
7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, Policy CS 14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and Policies 
OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

11.  No development shall take place until details of the finished floor levels of the 
dwellings hereby permitted in relation to the existing and proposed ground levels 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved levels.

Page 18



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory relationship between the proposed development 
and the adjacent land. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Design 
2006.

12.  No development shall take place until details, to include a plan, indicating the 
means of treatment of the hard surfaced areas of the site, has been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The hard surfacing shall 
incorporate the use of a porous material.  The hard surfacing shall be completed in 
accordance with the approved scheme before the dwellings hereby permitted are 
occupied, or in accordance with a timetable to be submitted and agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority as part of the details submitted for this condition.  
The approved hard surfacing shall thereafter be retained.
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity and surface water drainage.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, Policies CS 14 and CS 16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, 
and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 2006.

13.  No development shall take place until full details of how all spoil arising from the 
development will be used and/or disposed have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  These details shall:-
a. Show where any spoil to remain on the site will be deposited;
b. Show the resultant ground levels for spoil deposited on the site (compared to 

existing ground levels);
c. Include measures to remove all spoil (not to be deposited) from the site;
d. Include timescales for the depositing/removal of spoil.

 All spoil arising from the development shall be used and/or disposed of in 
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To ensure appropriate disposal of spoil from the development and to 
ensure that ground levels are not raised in order to protect the character and 
amenity of the area. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policies CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 
2006.

14.  No development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures to 
manage surface water within the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
These details shall:-
a. Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in 

accordance with best practice and the proposed national standards;
b. Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes the 

soil characteristics, infiltration rate and groundwater levels;
c. Include details of how the existing flood plain will be sustained or mitigated (any 

measures for loss of flood plain shall not increase flood risk elsewhere);
d. Include a drainage strategy for surface water run-off from the site that ensures 

that no discharge of surface water from the site will be directed into the public 
system;

Page 19



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

e. Include attenuation measures to retain rainfall run-off within the site and allow 
discharge from the site to an existing watercourse at no greater than Greenfield 
run-off rates;

f. Include construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of all proposed 
SuDS measures within the site;

g. Include run-off calculations, discharge rates, infiltration and storage capacity 
calculations for the proposed SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm 
+30% for climate change;

h. Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS 
features or causing any contamination to the soil or groundwater;

i. Ensure any permeable paved areas are designed and constructed in 
accordance with manufacturers guidelines;

j. Ensure any permeable areas are constructed on a permeable sub-base 
material such as Type 3 or reduced fines Type 1 material as appropriate;

k. Include details of how the SuDS measures will be maintained and managed 
after completion.  These details shall be provided as part of a handover pack for 
subsequent purchasers and owners of the property/premises;

l. Include a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development.  This plan shall incorporate arrangements for adoption by an 
appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and maintenance 
by a residents' management company or any other arrangements to secure the 
operation of the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.

All sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details before the dwellings hereby permitted are occupied, or in 
accordance with a timetable to be submitted and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority as part of the details submitted for this condition.  The 
sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained and managed in accordance 
with the approved details thereafter.
Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner. 
To prevent the increased risk of flooding, improve and protect water quality, habitat 
and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage system 
can and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, Policy 
CS 16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design - Part 4 Sustainable Design Techniques 2006.

(3) Application No. & Parish: 16/01603FULMAJ Land North of 
Winterbourne Farm, Winterbourne

(Councillor Jeff Beck declared a personal interest in Agenda item 4(3) by virtue of the fact 
that he was acquainted with the owner of the property next door to the application site. 
As his interest was personal and not prejudicial, registerable or a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, he determined to take part in the debate and vote on the matter).  
(Councillor Paul Bryant advised that he had been lobbied on Agenda Item 4(3)). 
The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(3)) concerning Planning Application 
No. 16/01603/FULMAJ in respect of the replacement of redundant barns with a single 
dwelling, redevelopment of an existing barn to provide garaging, associated landscaping, 

Page 20



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

provision of a community parking area and additional wider landscaping and biodiversity 
enhancements to an AONB. 
The Planning Officer confirmed that this application had previously been considered at 
the Western Area Planning Committee meeting on 31st August 2016. 
The site was located outside of any defined settlement boundary and within the North 
Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The village of 
Winterbourne did not have a settlement boundary as defined by Policy HSG1 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 Saved Policies 2007 and as such the application 
site fell within the open countryside as identified within Policy ADPP1 of the Core 
Strategy where ‘only appropriate limited development in the countryside will be allowed, 
focussed on the addressing identified needs and maintaining a strong rural economy’. 
Policy C1 of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document (DPD), 
(November 2015) also identified settlements where there would be a presumption in 
favour of development and redevelopment within the settlement boundaries. 
Winterbourne was again not identified as a settlement where such proposals would be 
considered. The DPD went on to state that exceptions to this were limited to rural 
exception housing schemes, conversion of redundant buildings, housing to 
accommodate rural workers and extension to or replacement of existing residential units. 
This proposal however did not meet any of these specific criteria. The support text to 
Policy C1 did allow for limited infill In settlements in the countryside with no defined 
settlement boundary, subject to:
i. It being within a closely knit cluster of 10 or more existing dwellings adjacent to, or 

fronting an existing highway; and
ii. The scale of development consisted of infilling a small undeveloped plot 

commensurate with the scale and character of existing dwellings within an 
otherwise built up frontage; and

iii. It did not extend the existing frontage; and
iv. The plot size and spacing between dwellings was similar to adjacent properties and 

respected the rural character and street scene of the locality.
On this basis, whilst the application site was adjacent to a group of 10 or more dwellings, 
it could not be considered as a closely knit cluster. Winterbourne Farm was itself not 
reflective of the main pattern of development within Winterbourne. The farmhouse was 
set on a stand alone, substantial site and clearly defined the end of the pattern of 
residential development. The site could not be classified as an ‘infill’ plot as it was not a 
small undeveloped plot between existing properties. It would be larger than any other plot 
within the settlement and would extend the existing frontage, all of which would be 
contrary to policy. Therefore it was considered that approval of this application could 
potentially set an undesirable future precedent for numerous similar application sites 
within the District which could be difficult to resist.
The proposed dwelling would result in a new dwelling in the countryside in an 
unsustainable location that would not minimise the need for travel by car and would not 
be accessible by an alternative means of transport.  Furthermore the proposal would not 
be well related to the existing settlement pattern and was not considered to fall within any 
of the special circumstances for isolated new homes in the countryside, particularly as 
the design was not considered to be of exceptional quality or innovative nature of the 
design as detailed in paragraph 55 of the NPPF.  Therefore, the principle of the 
development of a new dwelling and detached garage was not considered acceptable and 
was contrary to Policies ADPP1, ADPP5 and CS1 of the Core Strategy and Policy 

Page 21



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

ENV20 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 Saved Policies 2007 as well 
as the NPPF.
The proposed dwelling, detached garage and public car parking would result in a 
detrimental impact on the landscape and scenic beauty of the rural character and 
appearance of the AONB. Although the existing barns which were visible in the wider 
landscape were to be removed, the roof form of the replacement dwelling would be 
substantial and whilst sited further toward the road, it would remain highly visible in this 
sensitive AONB landscape, thus negating any benefit derived from the removal of the 
barns. Furthermore, the detached siting of the proposed dwelling and garage set well 
back from the road did not follow the existing pattern of development and would be seen 
in isolation from the remainder of the village (with the exception of Winterbourne Farm), 
which had a close knit pattern with substantially smaller curtilages.  It was not considered 
to be an infill plot as it would extend Winterbourne further northwards and create a 
curtilage, more in depth than any other plot within the village. This substantial residential 
curtilage with the strong formal domesticated boundary treatment of the brick wall 
proposed along the public right of way, and associated domestic paraphernalia within the 
residential curtilage, was considered to significantly harden and domesticate in 
appearance the existing transition between the built form of Winterbourne Village and the 
countryside. The parking of vehicles in this highly visible location outside of the 
settlement pattern of Winterbourne was also considered to contribute to the detrimental 
impact on the rural character and appearance of the AONB. Together these elements as 
a whole were not considered to provide any beneficial impact on the rural character and 
appearance of the AONB.  Therefore the application was considered to be contrary to 
Policies ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the Core Strategy and Policy ENV20 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 Saved Policies 2007 as well as the NPPF.
The application contained a significant amount of wider landscaping proposals, which 
could clearly improve the character and appearance of the site and the AONB if 
implemented. It should be noted that the AONB Officer confirmed that support as detailed 
for the application was on the basis of the inclusion of these wider landscape proposals.  
It was, however, critical to note that these improvements could not be secured by means 
of conditions or a legal obligation. To secure the landscaping proposals the works would 
need to meet the tests set out in the NPPG. These stated the condition or legal obligation 
must be necessary, relevant to planning and the application itself, enforceable, 
reasonable and precise. In this instance, the only landscaping which was considered to 
meet these tests was the planting immediately surrounding the site. Therefore, given 
these tests, if at any point in the future an application was submitted to vary or remove 
such a condition/obligation the Council would be likely to find it difficult to continue to 
require the works to be undertaken. Whilst the works could be implemented without the 
need for planning permission, any recommendation for approval would be on the basis of 
boundary planting and that alongside the bridleway only. The remaining landscaping and 
environmental enhancements therefore could not be considered as forming part of this 
application. 
Members at the Western Area Planning Committee had considered that the existing 
degraded condition of the site had an adverse effect on the village and wider AONB 
landscape. The proposal and in particular the removal of the barns and restoration of the 
site represented a public benefit in terms of environmental improvements which would 
outweigh the harm and justify the departure from national and local planning policy. 
Officers therefore determined that the issues involved should be considered by the 
District Planning Committee due to the conflict with planning policy that would undermine 
the development plan and the forthcoming Housing Allocations DPD. 

Page 22



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

The Highways Officer stated that this proposal would produce a relatively low number of 
vehicle movements and an existing access with poor sight lines would be closed up. The 
development also included a number of community parking spaces and for those reasons 
there were no objections to the application from a highways perspective. 
Councillor Jeff Beck noted that the report stated that the site was outside of any defined 
settlement boundary. However, the Planning Officer had stated in his introduction that 
Winterbourne had no settlement boundary. The Planning Officer confirmed that there 
was a settlement boundary in nearby Chieveley but that Winterbourne had no such 
boundary. Councillor Marigold Jacques stated that as most of Winterbourne was not 
situated in any settlement boundary she therefore felt that an exception could not be 
made of this application. The Planning Officer replied that it was still necessary to limit 
development in the area. 
Councillor Richard Crumly referred to paragraph 2.1 of the report where it stated that the 
barns were considered to be an eyesore in the AONB landscape, and he queried 
whether this was a planning consideration. The Planning Officer confirmed that it was not 
a planning consideration but was something which had been raised by neighbouring 
properties. The applicant always had the option of demolishing the barns on the site in 
order to remove the eyesore. 
Councillor Hilary Cole noted that the AONB had raised no objections to the application 
and she asked if this was due to the additional planting which was proposed. The 
Planning Officer felt that that was clearly the case and that there was no specific 
comment in support of the proposed dwelling on the site. 
Councillor Alan Macro referred to paragraph 6.2.13 on page 118 of the agenda where it 
stated that the proposed wider landscaping would improve the appearance of the area 
and that the majority of it was not related to the proposed development. He asked 
whether any of the additional planting would help to mitigate the development. The 
Planning Officer confirmed that the dark green area indicated on the plan was the 
planting which would help in screening the dwelling. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr. John Hayward, Parish Council 
representative, Mr. Charles Flower, objector, and Mr. Paul Clarke and Mr. Mark 
Cherrington, applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application.
Mr. Hayward in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 Mr. Hayward confirmed that he was the Chair of the Winterbourne Parish Meeting;

 Mr. Hayward stated that the majority of Winterbourne village were in support of the 
application and indeed the Planning Officer had received 18 letters of support;

 Chieveley Parish Council and the North Wessex Downs AONB had also been 
supportive of the application;

 It was noted that Planning Officers had concluded that the application was 
contrary to policy as Winterbourne had no settlement boundary. They had argued 
that the flint wall delineated the settlement pattern but this was not the case and 
the walls were the remains of three historic Winterbourne manors;

 Mr. Hayward stated that the proposed dwelling would not be an isolated house in 
the countryside as there was an existing dwelling about 40m away on one side 
and a bund for flood relief on the other side;

 Officer had stated that the proposed development would have a detrimental 
impact on the AONB but the AONB were supportive of the ecological 
enhancements and the application as a whole;

Page 23



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

 The northern approach to the village was a mess and the barns were ugly and 
dangerous. It was felt that it would be preferable to have a sensitively designed 
dwelling on the site which fitted in well with the neighbouring property and the 
village as a whole;

 The application included off road parking for village events and additional planting;

 If the application were to be refused then the benefits to the village would not 
happen and therefore Mr. Hayward stated that he would be grateful if the 
Committee could use its flexibility to go against policy. 

Councillor Clive Hooker noted that Mr. Hayward had mentioned that the approach into 
the village was a mess and he asked if he had asked the landowner to tidy up the site. 
Mr. Hayward responded that the site required more than a tidy up especially in relation to 
the barns. 
Mr. Charles Flower in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 Mr. Flower confirmed that he had an interest in the AONB as he had been on the 
Committee that had set it up. The village was very active in respect of the AONB 
with ancient woods being brought back into management;

 The village had a new enhanced flood protection scheme which was spoilt by the 
eyesore of the barns on the edge of the scheme;

 The proposed development would enhance the village and the AONB. The North 
Wessex Downs AONB supported the scheme and the village. Mr. Flower therefore 
hoped that the Committee would be able to support Winterbourne and the AONB 
to enable this area to be enhanced rather than keep the existing eyesore.

Councillor Clive Hooker asked Mr. Flower what he thought about the dereliction of 
eyesores and the fact that the applicant could potentially be rewarded for letting the 
barns fall in to disrepair. Mr. Flower responded that in this case the barns would cost a 
considerable amount of money to remove. The yard was mainly concrete and would also 
be expensive to remove and it was his opinion that the development of this site would 
enhance the village. There was therefore a balance to be considered.   
Mr. Cherrington and Mr. Clarke in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 Mr. Cherrington confirmed that he was the agent and that Mr. Clarke was the 
applicant and was in attendance to answer any questions from the Committee; 

 The revised scheme had been developed in collaboration with the village and the 
AONB;

 The scale of the house had been reduced and careful consideration had been 
given to the landscaping to ensure that it respected the natural land;

 The AONB had not raised any objections to the proposed development and 
indeed had made recommendations about the look of the house and had 
supported the ecological enhancements which were proposed;

 Mr. Cherrington confirmed that the applicant was agreeable that the planting and 
landscaping could be conditioned to ensure that it was implemented;

 It was noted that whilst it was policy to restrict residential development in the 
countryside it was not prohibited and therefore there should be some degree of 
leeway;

 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) had a presumption in favour of 
sustainable development and this development would enhance the village;

Page 24



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

 One material benefit was the substantial planting proposed on the site which 
included improved hedgerows, the planting of 94 trees, meadow planting and a 
five year maintenance programme;

 An informal green parking area would also be provided for village events which 
would improve highway safety by removing congestion from the main street;

 The environs of the listed dovecote would be improved and the proposed 
development would secure the removal of the redundant buildings which were an 
eyesore;

 The achievement of sustainable development was the key aim in the countryside 
and Mr. Cherrington felt that this scheme delivered that as the scheme had been 
well thought out. 

Councillor Alan Macro asked whether the barns on the other side of the road were in the 
same ownership and queried why the barns on the application site had been allowed to 
deteriorate. Mr. Peter Clarke replied that the site had been a dairy prior to his ownership 
but that running a dairy herd had not been viable. The plot was not of a sufficient size to 
enable it to be cropable and the demise of the dairy farm had already indicated that a 
business of this type would not be viable. The barns on the other side had been 
enhanced around six years ago. In response to a query as to how it could be ensured 
that development would not take place on the other side of the road it was stated that a 
considerable amount had been spent on upgrading the facilities for the storage of grain 
and the applicant was happy to condition that if necessary. 
Councillor Paul Bryant asked why the applicant could not clear the site and plant up with 
grain. Mr. Clarke stated that the planting scheme would cost up to £40k plus the five year 
maintenance scheme. The sides of the barns were asbestos and it would cost a 
considerable amount of money to dispose of this material. The structure was concrete 
framed rather than steel and this would be difficult to recycle. The concrete yard would 
also need to be broken up and Mr. Clarke advised that he could not justify spending that 
amount in order to return the site to a grassland and woodland area. 
Councillor Tim Metcalfe asked if Mr. Clarke had used the High Level Scheme (HLS) 
which was an environment scheme run by the Government. Mr. Clarke confirmed that he 
would pay for the planting through his company and was not a member of the HLS. 
Councillor Paul Bryant, as Ward Member, in addressing the Committee raised the 
following points:

 Councillor Bryant noted that the application was contrary to policy but he felt that 
the proposal was common sense;

 It was not economically viable to repair and reuse the barns but they could be 
converted into housing as the land was not suitable for modern farming;

 The site could be left as an eyesore or redeveloped into something which was 
useful but in order to redevelop it it would need to be identified as an exception 
site. The only remaining option was to build a house;

 There had been no objections raised and 18 letters of support had been received;

 Planning was not an exact science and exceptions could be made when there 
were good reasons for doing so;

 Councillor Bryant referred to the following paragraphs of the Officer’s report:
Paragraph 6.1.12 - mentioned paragraph 55 of the NPPF which stated that ‘Local 
planning authorities should avoid new isolated homes in the countryside unless 

Page 25



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

there were special circumstances ....’. He said that the house would not be 
isolated and the special circumstances were that the unsightly barns would be 
removed. 
Paragraph 6.1.16  - ‘the proposal was considered to harm and undermine the 
existing relationship of the settlement within the open countryside’. Councillor 
Bryant felt that the replacement dwelling would not undermine the relationship’. 
Paragraph 6.2.5 – ‘The detached siting of the proposed dwelling and garage from 
the existing built form within the village of Winterbourne ...’. Councillor Bryant 
stated that there was no coherent form of dwellings within the village – some were 
big, some small and all were unique. 
Paragraph 6.5.14 – ‘the replacement of the barns with residential development 
was not justified and considered to be inappropriate due to the adverse impact 
upon the character of the area ...’. The proposed development would have less of 
an impact than the existing barns. 

 In summary Councillor Bryant stated that this was a good use of a brownfield site 
for the erection of an attractive house. 

In considering the above application Members felt that the benefits had been well 
articulated. The application was contrary to policy but the options for development of the 
site were limited and it would be expensive to remove the redundant buildings. Councillor 
Garth Simpson therefore proposed to approve the application and this was seconded by 
Councillor Jeff Beck. 
Councillor Marigold Jaques also noted that the proposed application was against policy 
but that it was well supported and would enhance the life of the community. 
Councillor Anthony Pick supported the AONB and the settlements within it. The 
objections set out in paragraphs 1.1 to 1.5 were all subject to question and Councillor 
Pick disputed them. 
Councillor Jeff Beck noted that the development would be sandwiched between the flood 
prevention scheme on one side and the last dwelling on the northern edge of the village 
and therefore it could not be said that the site was in open countryside. 
Councillor Alan Law stated that the Council had policies for a reason. The site was in the 
open countryside as it was outside the Settlement Boundary. The Core Strategy dealt 
with hamlets and allowed infill. However, development should not take place on the 
outskirts as this could mean that the hamlet would grow step by step. The only reason for 
making this an exception was that the current site was an eyesore and if that was the 
case then the Council could be subject to a large number of similar applications in the 
future from elsewhere in the district. Councillor Law was sympathetic but in principle it 
was necessary to take a planned approach across the district as a whole. 
Councillor Richard Crumly supported the Officer’s recommendation and the views 
expressed by Councillor Law. Just because something was an eyesore was not a 
planning consideration. The site was in the open countryside and the Council had 
policies which went against such applications. 
The Planning Officer referred to the point made by Councillor Clive Hooker earlier in the 
meeting where he asked whether dereliction should be rewarded by development. This 
was a good point and it was difficult to be consistent in this respect. 
Councillor Tim Metcalfe felt that the application was not against national policy as the 
Government was pushing the conversion of barns into residential accommodation and he 

Page 26



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

made reference to a recent appeal case. Councillor Law made the point that the 
application in question was not for a barn conversion but a new build. 
Councillor Clive Hooker confirmed that he had voted against the application at the 
Western Area Planning Committee meeting and he was still of the same view. The site 
was in the countryside and the new dwelling would be a dominant feature in the 
landscape. The only reason the AONB had not raised any objection was due to the 
additional planting on the site. 
Councillor Hilary Cole in summing up stated that West Berkshire was a plan led authority 
and this application was contrary to policy which would undermine the emerging HSA 
policy. There was nothing to stop the applicant demolishing the eyesore and the only 
issue preventing him from doing so was the cost. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to the following conditions:
Conditions:
1.  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission.
Reason:   To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004); to 
enable the Local Planning Authority to review the desirability of the development 
should it not be started within a reasonable time.

2.  The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with: 
Site location plan                                         Fig 1   D                                 
Block Plan and section                               1611/PL01     
Proposed dwelling ground floor                1611/PL02
Proposed dwelling first floor                      1611/PL03
Proposed dwelling N & E elevations        1611/PL05
Proposed dwelling S & W elevations       1611/PL06
Proposed garage plans                              1611/PL07
Existing garage elevations             1611/PL08
Proposed garage elevations                      1611/PL09
Existing barn elevations                             1611/PL11
Proposed barn plans                                   1611/PL12
Proposed barn elevations              1611/PL13
Car Park Layout                                           1611/PL14
Landscape and Ecological Enhancements Report dated May 16
Landscape and Ecological Enhancements Plan Fig 2 dated May 16
Landscape Strategy Plan Fig 5 Rev D dated May 16 received 28.17.16
Design and Access Statement 
Flood Risk Assessment received dated May 2016
Foul Sewage and Utilities Statement  dated May 2016
Bat Roost Survey Report dated September 2014/ amended 2016
Phase 1 Geo-Environmental Desk Study Report dated July 2014
All received with the application validated 20.06.16 unless otherwise specified.
Reason:  To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the 
submitted details in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, 
policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS 13, CS 14, CS 17, and CS 19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy 2006-2026, policies TRANS.1, ENV.19, ENV.20, TRANS.1 and 

Page 27



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

OVS.5 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007, and 
Supplementary Planning Document: Quality Design 2006. 

3. No construction above foundation level shall take place until samples and an 
accompanying schedule of all external visible materials and finishes (including to 
windows and doors) to be used in the dwelling and conversion of the outbuildings 
hereby permitted has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This condition shall apply irrespective of any indications as to 
these matters which have been detailed in the current application. Thereafter the 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved materials.
Reason:  To ensure that the external materials are appropriate to the historic 
interest of the building, are visually attractive and respond to local character. This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS 14, and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026, Policies ENV.19 and ENV.20 of the West Berkshire District 
Local Plan Saved Policies 2007, and Supplementary Planning Document Quality 
Design 2006.

4.  All landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted plans, 
schedule of planting and retention, programme of works and other supporting 
information as specified in The  WH Landscape Consultancy Ltd Landscape Report 
and the  WH Landscape Consultancy Ltd Landscape and Ecological Enhancements 
Report (May 2016) and associated plans including Figure 2 Landscape and 
Ecological Enhancements (Addendum) and Figure 5 Landscape Strategy. The 
approved landscape works shall be implemented within the first planting season 
following completion of development or in accordance with a programme submitted 
before any development takes place and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  Any trees, shrubs, plants or hedges planted in accordance with the 
approved scheme which are removed, die, or become diseased or become 
seriously damaged within five years of completion of the approved landscaping 
scheme shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees, shrubs or 
hedges of a similar size and species to that originally approved.
Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of landscaping in 
accordance with the objectives of the NPPF and Policies ADPP5, CS14, CS18 and 
CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy July 2006-2026.

5.  No development or other operations on site (other than investigative work) shall 
commence until an investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any 
assessment provided with the planning application, has been completed in 
accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on 
the site, whether or not it originates on the site and submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must 
be undertaken by competent persons and provide information for a detailed 
assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those off site, 
and a written report of the findings must be produced. The report of the findings 
must include: 
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

- human health, 
- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, 

woodland and service lines and pipes, 
- adjoining land, 

Page 28



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

- groundwaters and surface waters,
- ecological systems, 
- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
`Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 
Reason:  Previous uses of the site could have caused contamination of land. The 
Phase 1 investigation recommends an intrusive investigation. There is a need to 
make sure any unacceptable risks are remediated to ensure that risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, 
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy 
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy OVS5 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

6. No development or other operations on site (other than investigative work) shall 
commence until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition 
suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, 
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 
must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and 
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 
2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the 
land after remediation. 
Reason:  Previous uses of the site could have caused contamination of land. The 
Phase 1 investigation recommends an intrusive investigation. There is a need to 
make sure any unacceptable risks are remediated to ensure that risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, 
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy 
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy OVS5 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

7. No development shall take place until remediation works approved under condition 
9 have been carried out in full on site.  The Local Planning Authority must be given 
two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 
 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the 
approved remediation works or development, that was not previously identified, it 
must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority and all 
works must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected 
contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing.  No 
further works shall occur until an investigation and risk assessment has been 
undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 8, and where 
remediation is necessary a remediation scheme has been prepared in accordance 

Page 29



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

with the requirements of condition 9, and the assessment and scheme has be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, 
and any subsequent remediation scheme, a verification report must be prepared 
and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing.  This condition 
shall not be discharged until a verification report demonstrating the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out and identifying any requirements for longer-term 
monitoring of pollutant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency 
action has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.
If required, a monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-
term effectiveness of the proposed remediation over a period to be agreed with 
Local Planning Authority, and the provision of reports on the same must be 
prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority.  Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and 
when the remediation objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the 
effectiveness of the monitoring and maintenance carried out must be produced, and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 
'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 
Reason:  Previous uses of the site could have caused contamination of land. The 
Phase 1 investigation recommends an intrusive investigation. There is a need to 
make sure any unacceptable risks are remediated to ensure that risks from land 
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, 
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy 
CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy OVS5 of the West 
Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

8.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or an order revoking and re-
enacting that Order, with or without modification), no additions or extensions to the 
dwelling shall be built or ancillary buildings, structures, fences, gates, walls or other 
means of enclosure shall be erected within the curtilage of the dwelling unless 
permission in writing has been granted by the Local Planning Authority on an 
application made for the purpose.
Reason:   To protect the open plan character of the site and surrounding area. This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, Policies ADPP1, ADPP5, CS 14 and CS 19 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy 2006-2026.

9.  No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The 
statement shall provide for:
(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials

Page 30



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

(c)     Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d)     The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 

displays and facilities for public viewing
(e)     Wheel washing facilities
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 

construction works
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the 
interests of highway safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policies CS5 and CS13 of the 
West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire 
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007). 

10.  The existing southern vehicular access at the site as shown on approved plan 
1611/PL14 shall be stopped up and abandoned immediately after the development 
hereby approved has been brought into use.  The verge shall, at the same time as 
the stopping-up and abandonment, be reinstated to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interest of road safety and highway maintenance.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) 
and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

11.  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until the vehicle parking and 
turning space have been provided in accordance with the approved plan(s).  The 
parking and/or turning space shall thereafter be kept available for parking (of private 
motor cars and/or light goods vehicles) at all times.
Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in 
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road 
safety and the flow of traffic.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire 
District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

12. No development shall take place until details of the surfacing arrangements for the 
vehicular access to the highway have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall ensure that bonded material is used 
across the entire width of the access for a distance of 5 metres measured back from 
the carriageway edge. Thereafter the surfacing arrangements shall be constructed 
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To avoid migration of loose material onto the highway in the interest of 
road safety. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core 
Strategy (2006-2026).

13.  No demolition or construction works shall take place outside the following hours:
7:30am to 6:00pm Mondays to Fridays;
8:30am to 1:00pm Saturdays;
nor at any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Page 31



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Reason:   To safeguard the amenities of adjoining land uses and occupiers.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
2012, Policy CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 and Policy 
OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 2007.

14.  No construction of the dwelling hereby approved shall commence until all of the 
barns, indicated for demolition on drawing number 1611/PL01 have been fully 
demolished to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason:  In the interests of visual amenity within this highly sensitive AONB 
landscape.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework (March 2012), Policies ADPP5, CS14 and CS19 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026, Supplementary Planning Document Quality 
Design (June 2006) 

15.  No development or site works or development shall take place within the application 
area until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of 
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter the development shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with 
the approved statement.
Reason: To ensure that any significant archaeological remains that are found are 
adequately recorded in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(March 2012)

16.  No development shall commence until details of external lighting have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  No external 
lighting will illuminate the bat roost access points provided as part of the mitigation 
scheme or the boundary vegetation.  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be 
occupied until the external lighting has been implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.  No additional external lighting shall be installed on the site 
without the prior approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority by way of a 
formal planning application made for that purpose.
Reason: The site is located within the North Wessex Downs AONB and the area is 
unlit at night and benefits from dark skies.  Inappropriate external lighting would 
harm the special rural character of the AONB and potentially harm a protected 
species.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (March 2012), Policies CS14, CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire 
Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy ENV20 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 
1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007) and Supplementary Planning Document Quality 
Design (June 2006).

17.  No development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures to 
manage surface water within the site have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
These details shall:
a) Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in 

accordance with best practice and the proposed national standards;
b) Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes 

the soil characteristics, infiltration rate and groundwater levels;
c) Include a drainage strategy for surface water run-off from the site that ensures 

that no discharge of surface water from the site will be directed into the public 
system;

Page 32



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

e) Include attenuation measures to retain rainfall run-off within the site and allow 
discharge from the site to an existing watercourse at no greater than 
Greenfield run-off rates;

f) Include construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of all 
proposed SuDS measures within the site;

g) Include run-off calculations, discharge rates, infiltration and storage capacity 
calculations for the proposed SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm 
+30% for climate change;

h) Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS 
features or causing any contamination to the soil or groundwater;

i) Ensure any permeable paved areas are designed and constructed in 
accordance with manufacturers guidelines;

j) Ensure any permeable areas are constructed on a permeable sub-base 
material such as Type 3 or reduced fines Type 1 material as appropriate;

k) Include details of how the SuDS measures will be maintained and managed 
after completion.  These details shall be provided as part of a handover pack 
for subsequent purchasers and owners of the property/premises;

l) Include a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the 
development.  This plan shall incorporate arrangements for adoption by an 
appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management and 
maintenance by a residents' management company or any other 
arrangements to secure the operation of the sustainable drainage scheme 
throughout its lifetime.

All sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details before the dwelling hereby permitted is occupied or in accordance 
with a timetable to be submitted and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority as part of the details submitted for this condition.  The sustainable 
drainage measures shall be maintained and managed in accordance with the 
approved details thereafter.
Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner. 
To prevent the increased risk of flooding; to improve and protect water quality, 
habitat and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface water drainage 
system can be, and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(March 2012), Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design - Part 4 Sustainable Design 
Techniques (June 2006).

18.  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until a Management Plan for 
the proposed Package Treatment Plant (PTP) has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The Management Plan for the PTP must 
include details of a maintenance contract with a suitably qualified contractor to 
manage the PTP as well as details of a visual and audible alarm system to be 
installed with the PTP that would be triggered by a mechanical failure, or a 
reduction in the effluents quality. Discharge from the proposed PTP must be to the 
ground, via a soakaway as confirmed in the email from Alexa Conder dated 1st 
June 2015.  If it is found that discharge to the ground, for any reason, is not suitable 
the dwelling hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a proposed alternative 
system has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Page 33



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Authority.  The dwelling hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the PTP has 
been installed strictly in accordance with the approved details.  The PTP will be 
maintained thereafter in accordance with the approved details.
Reason:  The proposed development site is within close proximity of the 
Winterbourne Stream, which is a tributary of the River Lambourn Special Area of 
Conservation (SAC) and Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI).  Such measures 
would ensure that the proposed system is appropriate, and would not result in 
polluted runoff reaching the Winterbourne Stream.  This condition is imposed in 
accordance with Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 as 
well as the NPPF.

19.  The area of land to be used for informal car parking as shown on approved drawing 
number 1611/PL14 shall be used solely for car parking and for no other purpose.
Reason:   Any other use may not be acceptable on the site.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and 
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

20.  No development shall take place until detailed drawings showing the location and 
type of 3 built in cavity wall bat boxes have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The dwelling hereby approved shall not be 
occupied until the bat boxes have been installed in accordance with the approved 
details and the roosts created hereafter retained.
Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law. This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy ENV20 of 
the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

21.  No development shall commence until a copy of the Natural England EPS Licence 
required has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, unless it can be shown to the Local Planning Authority's satisfaction that 
such a licence is not required.
Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy ENV20 of 
the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

22.  Should the development hereby permitted not be commenced within 1 year of the 
date of this permission, no development shall commence until the bat survey has 
been repeated and a report has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The report will include updated detailed bat mitigation 
measures. Such approved updated mitigation measures will be implemented in full 
and shall be retained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy ENV20 of 
the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

23.  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until the Bat Mitigation 
recommendations made in Section 4.3 of the Bat Roost Survey report dated 
September 2014 and amended 2016 for this site by ENIMS have been implemented 
in full.

Page 34



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy ENV20 of 
the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

24.  The dwelling hereby approved shall not be occupied until a report from an qualified 
ecologist which confirms that the approved mitigation and enhancement measures 
have been implemented in full has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.   
Reason: To ensure the protection of species protected by law and the 
implementation of biodiversity enhancements proposed as part of the application.  
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (March 2012), Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026) and Policy ENV20 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 
(Saved Policies 2007).
This decision has been taken having regard to the policies and proposals in the 
West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (WBDLP), the Berkshire Structure 
Plan 2001-2016 (BSP), the Waste Local Plan for Berkshire 1998-2006, the 
Replacement Minerals Local Plan for Berkshire 1991-2006 (incorporating the 
alterations adopted in December 1997 and May 2001) and to all other relevant 
material considerations, including Government guidance, supplementary planning 
guidance notes; and in particular guidance notes and policies:               

INFORMATIVE:
1. The applicant’s attention is drawn to the fact that any conditions must be complied 

with in full before any work commences on site, failure to do so may result in 
enforcement action being instigated. 

2. The above Permission may contain pre-conditions, which require specific matters to 
be approved by the Local Planning Authority before a specified stage in the 
development occurs.  For example, “Prior to commencement of development 
written details of the means of enclosure will be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority”.  This means that a lawful commencement 
of the approved development cannot be made until the particular requirements of 
the pre-condition(s) have been met.

3. For further information regarding the discharge of the conditions or any other 
matters relating to the decision, please contact the Customer Call Centre on: 
01635 519111 

4.    This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable 
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to 
secure high quality appropriate development.  In this application whilst there has 
been a need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has 
worked proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered to be 
a development which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions 
of the area.

5.    The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to the 
Council as part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure.  A Liability 
Notice setting out further details, and including the amount of CIL payable will be 
sent out separately from this Decision Notice.  You are advised to read the Liability 
Notice and ensure that a Commencement Notice is submitted to the authority prior 
to the commencement of the development.  Failure to submit the Commencement 
Notice will result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and the loss of any right to 

Page 35



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

pay by instalments, and additional costs to you in the form of surcharges.  For 
further details see the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

6.    The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Berkshire Act, 1986, Part II, Clause 9, 
which enables the Highway Authority to recover the costs of repairing damage to 
the footway, cycleway or grass verge, arising during building operations.

7.    The attention of the applicant is drawn to the Highways Act, 1980, which enables 
the Highway Authority to recover expenses due to extraordinary traffic.

8.    The applicant is advised that this planning permission does not in any way allow the 
Public Right of Way to be obstructed at any time during the course of the 
development.

9.    The applicant is advised that all visitors to the site should be made aware that they 
would be driving along a Public Right of Way.  As a result they should drive with 
caution when manoeuvring into and out of the site and should give way to 
pedestrians, cyclists and equestrians at all times.

10.   Nothing connected with either the development or its construction must adversely 
affect or encroach upon the Public Right of Way (PROW), which must remain 
available for public use at all times.  Information on the width of the PROW can be 
obtained from the PROW Officer.

11.   The applicant is advised that the Rights of Way Officer must be informed prior to the 
laying of any services beneath the Public Right of Way.

12.   Where the ground levels adjacent to the path are to be raised above the existing 
ground levels, a suitable drainage system must be installed adjacent to the Public 
Right of Way, to a specification to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority prior 
to development commencing.

13.   The applicant is advised to give the Local Authority 21 days notice prior to the 
development commencing.  Before the development starts, the Local Authority must 
obtain from the applicant a written undertaking that they will meet any costs 
incurred by the Local Authority in the repair of the surface of the Public Right of 
Way, as a result of construction traffic using the route.

14.   No alteration of the surface of the Public Right of Way must take place without the 
prior written permission of the Rights of Way Officer.

15.   The Highways Manager, West Berkshire District Council, Highways & Transport, 
Council Offices, Market Street, Newbury, RG14 5LD, telephone number 01635 - 
519803, should be contacted to agree the access construction details and to grant a 
licence before any work is carried out within the highway.   A formal application 
should be made, allowing at least four (4) weeks' notice, to obtain details of 
underground services on the applicant's behalf.

(4) Application No. & Parish: 16/01675/HOUSE and 16/01676/LBC2 
Long Acre Farm, Seven Barrows, Lambourn

The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 4(4)) concerning Planning Application 
Nos. 16/01675/HOUSE and 16/01676/LBC2 in respect of the erection of a two storey 
extension and single storey glazed link.
The Planning Officer, Derek Carnegie, confirmed that this application had previously 
been considered at the Western Area Planning Committee meeting on 31st August 2016. 
The site was located within Upper Lambourn, outside of any defined settlement boundary 
and within the North Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). The 

Page 36

http://www.westberks.gov.uk/cil


DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

application site fell within the open countryside as identified within Area Delivery Plan 
Policy 1 (ADPP1) of the Core Strategy where ‘only appropriate limited development in the 
countryside will be allowed, focussed on addressing identified needs and maintaining a 
strong rural economy’. Policy ENV.24 of the Local Plan Saved Policies allowed for the 
extension of houses in the countryside in principle subject to a range of criteria, primarily 
relating to design, harm to the character of the area and whether it would be 
disproportionate to the original dwelling.
Policy C6 of the Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document (HSA DPD) was 
proposed to replace saved policy ENV.24. This policy also allowed for the extensions of 
houses in the countryside. There was a presumption in favour of proposals for the 
extension of existing permanent dwellings and would be permitted subject to scale in 
relation to the original dwelling, design and use of materials, and harm to the amenity of 
neighbouring properties. Of most relevance to this application was that it should have no 
adverse impact on the setting, the space occupied within the plot boundary, on local rural 
character, the historic interest of the building and its setting within the wider landscape.
It was considered that the impact of the proposed extension when taken with the existing 
building would result in a substantial dwelling on this plot, which would be inappropriate 
in this location. Whilst the plot size was relatively large, the proposed dwelling would 
dominate the residential curtilage. The original rear garden area would be lost to built 
development, with the front of the dwelling re-sited to the extension. The original listed 
farmhouse/farm yard layout would no longer be visible, which was considered to have an 
adverse impact on the setting of this Grade II Listed Building. 
Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty had a high status of protection in relation to 
landscape and scenic beauty, as set out in paragraph 115 of the NPPF. It was 
considered that the cumulative impact of the proposed extension, in conjunction with the 
existing dwelling and surrounding buildings on the site would introduce a significant 
amount of built form into this open, rural landscape which would have a detrimental 
impact in this location. It was considered that the proposal did not comply with relevant 
criteria of saved policy ENV24 or emerging policy C6 in this regard.
With regard to proportion and increases in size of extensions proposed in the 
countryside, the Replacement Dwellings and Extensions to Dwellings in the Countryside 
SPG outlined the factors to consider (including floor space calculations based on the 
original dwelling as first constructed or as they existed in 1948 if built before this date). It 
stated that an increase in floor space of less than 50% would likely be acceptable, with 
anything over 100% normally to be unacceptable. Between 50% and 100% depended on 
the site characteristics, scale and massing of the proposal. The existing dwelling 
currently consisted of the original farm cottage, which had been significantly extended 
over time, with a substantial two storey extension, followed by a further significant single 
storey modern extension. The proposal would add a further two storey extension to 
replicate the existing two storey dwelling. Due to the amount of changes over time, the 
actual floorspace of the original dwelling was difficult to calculate. If however the single 
storey rear extension was removed and the two storey original building and proposed 
extensions were simply compared, this would represent a 97% increase. Historical maps 
showed that the dwelling would have been significantly smaller and therefore the actual 
increase in floorspace over the original dwelling would be in excess of 100%. 
It was noted that the applicants had questioned the use of the ‘disproportionate 
calculations’, which was one of the criteria of Policy ENV24. Emerging policy only 
required the proposal to be subservient to the host dwelling. It was clear from the 
calculations that the proposed would be marginally subservient to the host property in 
terms of a 97% increase, but visually this would not be apparent, particularly when it was 

Page 37



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

added to the proposed single storey extension and the existing modern elements of the 
property. These elements combined would result in a form of development which would 
be three times the depth of the original building and not a form which could be 
considered to be either proportionate or subservient.
The dwelling was a Grade II Listed building and an application for Listed Building 
Consent was also to be determined by the Committee. In the consultation response from 
Historic England, the dwelling was described as a relatively rare Cottage Orné, where the 
proposed extension, on the grounds of overdevelopment, would lead to a high degree of 
harm to the significance of the listed building. The proposed extension was considered to 
be fundamentally at odds with the architectural character of the original modest cottage 
and the significance of the listed building would be lost. The Conservation Officer echoed 
these views, also adding that it was the Council’s duty to preserve buildings and settings 
of architectural interest. The property’s special interest was derived from its modest, but 
decorated appearance, the building techniques used in its construction and the detailing 
on the facade. Whilst it had been extended, this had been to the rear of the building and 
had been subservient and of the same architectural language. The proposed design 
replicated the existing cottage in a bookend effect, which was clearly not subservient to 
the main cottage. In 100 years time it would be difficult to determine the original house, 
which was of key significance. The original dwelling would no longer house the entrance 
to the dwelling and the original siting and layout would be lost. Whilst it was 
acknowledged that previous extensions had undermined some of the significance of the 
heritage asset, this was not sufficient reason to grant consent. The building still remained 
a valuable heritage asset which in the opinion of Historic England warranted further 
research. 
The proposals were considered to result in significant harm to the heritage asset. In 
these instances the NPPF (paragraph 132), was clear that “Significance can be harmed 
or lost through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within its 
setting.” It went on to state that “where there is no public benefit to outweigh the harm, 
these applications should be refused”. It was considered that the existing dwelling had 
sufficient floorspace to enable it to operate as a viable dwelling. Therefore the proposed 
extension of the dwelling would provide only private benefit and no public benefit contrary 
to advice. Whilst the applicants wished to remodel the space to suit family requirements, 
this did not represent sufficient justification to outweigh the harm to the valuable heritage 
asset. This was further reinforced by the views of the Conservation Officer and that of 
Historic England, who as specialist heritage professionals, set out that the application 
should be refused as contrary to policy CS19, the NPPF and the provisions of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
The Conservation Officer had expressed a willingness to discuss a more suitable single 
storey scheme with the applicant/agent that could be acceptable on an exceptional basis, 
but this had not been taken forward and the Officer view was that there were no 
exceptional circumstances on which to approve this application. 
Members at the Western Area Planning Committee in the main considered that the 
proposed extension was of a design which was appropriate and the original modest form 
of the cottage did not meet modern requirements and therefore the proposed extension, 
given that the original cottage had already been extended, was acceptable. They felt this 
benefit would outweigh the harm and justify the departure from national and local 
planning policy. The Western Area Planning Committee therefore resolved to grant 
conditional planning permission, but agreed that the matter should be referred to the 
District Planning Committee to consider policy implications and, if permission was 
granted, conditions of approval. Officers also determined that the issues involved should 
be considered by the District Planning Committee due to the significant conflict with the 

Page 38



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

provisions of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. This was 
in addition to conflicting with planning policy that would undermine the development plan 
and the forthcoming HSA DPD. 
In response to queries from Members, the Planning Officer advised that the Grade II 
listed building consisted of the original cottage and the glazed link by association. The 
Planning Officer also confirmed that the current property contained two first floor 
bedrooms with ensuite bathrooms. 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Mr Mark Preston and Mr Mark Pettitt, 
applicant/agent, addressed the Committee on this application.
Mr Preston in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 He explained that the purpose of this application was to enable himself, his wife 
and their two young children to live within a single building. He was not a 
developer seeking to make a profit. 

 The Grade II listed property was very small and could not accommodate the four 
bedrooms sought. This was why a planning application for an extension had been 
submitted. Approval of this would enable his children’s bedrooms to be on the first 
floor as were the existing bedrooms. 

 Mr Preston had already invested much in improving this property. 
Mr Pettitt in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 He explained that this application was a much improved version of the original 
application withdrawn in May 2016. It was little different from the scheme that the 
Conservation Officer had felt would be acceptable. 

 Listed buildings needed to evolve over time, and in the case of this property, 
become a family home. To achieve this it was sensible for the additional bedrooms 
to be located on the first floor. 

 The extension would not compete visually with the main house as it would be 
some 10.5 metres distant and would not therefore alter the setting of the main 
house. 

 The glazed link would provide a sensitive connection between the original property 
and the new. 

 The proposal was compliant with Policy C6 of the HSA DPD. 

 The use of appropriate materials was a condition of approval and the extension 
would not be a harmful addition to the existing property. 

Councillor Anthony Pick noted that if approved, the extension would ‘stick out’ from the 
original property when viewed from the south. The extension would also intrude on the 
existing garden space and Councillor Pick queried landscaping plans. Mr Preston was of 
the view that it would be necessary to stand at some distance from the property from the 
south in order to observe the extension ‘sticking out’. He agreed with the importance of 
maintaining the building’s current facade. In terms of landscaping, Mr Preston advised 
that extensive landscaping work had already been undertaken and this would be 
minimally added to. 
Councillor Hilary Cole queried the purpose of the numerous outbuildings on the site. Mr 
Preston explained that, in time, it was his hope that these would be used as stables. One 
of the outbuildings was also used as a utilities room, washing machine etc, as the listed 
property could not accommodate all modern day appliances. The l-shaped 

Page 39



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

building/annex was used as accommodation by Mr Preston’s elder children when they 
visited. 
Councillor Cole asked Mr Preston whether as a parent he would be happy with the 
distance that would exist between his bedroom and that of his young children if this 
application was approved. Mr Preston explained that he would be content if their 
bedroom was on the same floor. 
Councillor Gordon Lundie, speaking as Ward Member, made the following points:

 He was also speaking on behalf of his fellow Ward Member, Councillor Graham 
Jones, and they were both in support of this planning application.

 The original cottage was modest in size. It was very attractive and sat well within 
the landscape. He agreed it was important to protect and preserve the existing 
property. 

 Historic England felt that the proposed extension would result in a high degree of 
harm to and loss of the significance of the modest listed building and development 
of listed buildings needed significant justification before they could be accepted. 
Councillor Lundie questioned the harm that would be caused to this listed 
property. He pointed out that significant additions had been made to the original 
modest dwelling. While this proposal would constitute a further addition at the far 
end of the existing property, Councillor Lundie again questioned the level of harm 
this would cause. 

 He added that the additions made had been sympathetically done and this 
extension would be erected in a similar style. It would enhance the site. 

 The view of the property from the road would not be altered, this would remain of 
the cottage. 

 The Western Area Planning Committee had felt that the benefits of this proposed 
development would outweigh any harm. The consideration for Members was the 
level of impact of this proposed extension on the listed building. Councillor Lundie 
did not feel this would be significantly harmed. 

Councillor Alan Law noted the points of the Ward Member. He pointed out that the 
Committee needed to determine whether or not to grant planning permission and listed 
building consent. In terms of the listed building consent, the property had already been 
extended and Councillor Law shared the view that this proposal would not cause 
additional harm to the listed building. Policy requirements for extensions of properties in 
the countryside were unchanged, with consideration needing to be given to whether or 
not development would be in proportion with the existing dwelling. The overall increase to 
the property if the extension was approved, in comparison to the original dwelling, was 
extensive. 
Councillor Richard Crumly advised that he had listened carefully to the points made and 
supported the clear Officer view that planning permission should be refused as it was 
important that the Council stuck with its own planning rules. The comments of Historic 
England had to be taken into account, with an extension nearly as large as the original 
dwelling harmful. Only a more subservient extension could be considered. 
Mr Carnegie stated that Planning Officers had a duty to consider the view of a Planning 
Inspector at an appeal. It was likely that a Planning Inspector on noting the objections of 
Historic England would reach the same conclusion of Officers, i.e. that the proposal 
would constitute overdevelopment on this site and cause harm. It was the Council’s duty 
to protect assets in the countryside. 

Page 40



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Councillor Crumly then proposed acceptance of Officers’ recommendation to refuse both 
planning permission and listed building consent. This was seconded by Councillor Alan 
Macro. 
Councillor Garth Simpson referred to the point made earlier that the actual increase in 
floorspace over the original dwelling would be in excess of 100%. He queried what was 
considered as the original. Councillor Cole clarified that any development post 1948 was 
considered as additional. Mr Carnegie confirmed that the 100% increase covered 
development since 1948. Any additions prior to 1948 were considered as part of the 
original dwelling. 
Councillor Macro repeated the view of Historic England that this development would 
constitute a high degree of harm and the loss of this heritage asset would be of concern. 
The NPPF also stated that where there was no public benefit to outweigh the harm, 
applications should be refused. Councillor Macro noted no benefit from this application 
other than to the owner of the property. As stated by the Planning Officer, the 
Conservation Officer had suggested that a single storey extension would be suitable, but 
this had not been taken forward. 
Councillor Clive Hooker felt that additions post 1948 were concerning and the damage 
had been done to the original property over the course of many years. These had not 
been subservient, particularly the most recent modern extension. This created an issue 
when determining this application. However, Councillor Hooker felt the proposed 
extension was too large and would have a detrimental impact. 
Councillor Tim Metcalfe commented that he liked the proposed design of the extension 
and felt that it would provide a balanced affect on the existing dwelling. The south facade 
would not be compromised. Councillor Metcalfe felt that the extended property would be 
appropriate to its situation and the vast garden space would remain. It was however 
questionable whether the overall increase in size would be too great when compared 
against the original listed building. 
Councillor Metcalfe would not be supportive of a single storey extension as this would not 
achieve the balance of a two storey extension. Councillor Metcalfe advised that he would 
abstain from the vote on this application. 
Councillor Paul Bryant felt that a single storey extension would be acceptable. The 
question of whether additions already made and proposed to be made to the original 
property were acceptable was a matter of opinion. The increase referred to in excess of 
100%, compared to the original dwelling, was unusual in this instance, as much of the 
additions were not directly attached to the main building. Councillor Bryant stated that 
this proposed extension needed to be considered on its own merits as in each case. 
Councillor Cole made reference to the HSA DPD, specifically Policy C6 – extension of 
existing dwellings within the countryside and asked Members to note that this stated that 
the relationship with the existing dwelling was key, and the scale, height and massing of 
an alteration or extension should appear subservient to the existing dwelling. Did this 
proposal achieve that? This included the cumulative impact of development. Cumulative 
impact was mentioned a number of times within housing in the countryside policies. 
These were key factors needing consideration. 
Councillor Cole stated that as the Council’s Portfolio Holder for Planning she would be 
supporting the Officers’ recommendation to refuse in line with planning policy. She 
understood the applicant’s reasoning for the application to better accommodate his 
growing family, but this was not a planning consideration. The Committee’s decision had 
to be based on the scale, height and massing that would be created if this application 
was approved, the cumulative impact alongside previous development on the site and 

Page 41



DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE - 28 SEPTEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

whether it would be subservient to the existing dwelling. In Councillor Cole’s view it would 
not be subservient.  
Mr Carnegie reiterated that the Council had a duty to protect heritage assets. He also 
made the point that if this application was refused it could go to an appeal where it would 
receive an independent determination. 
The proposal to accept Officers’ recommendation to refuse both planning permission and 
listed building consent was then put to separate votes. 
RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to refuse planning 
permission for the following reasons:

1. The proposal fails to preserve the building, its setting, or its features of special 
architectural or historic interest. The proposal would result in harm to this Grade II 
listed building which would not be outweighed by any public benefits arising from the 
proposed works. The proposal therefore conflicts with the statutory requirements of 
the Planning (Listed Buildings and conservation Areas) Act 1990, the NPPF and 
Policy CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

2. The proposed extension would be disproportionate in size and scale and would not 
be visually subservient to the existing dwelling. The cumulative impact of 
development would be materially greater and more harmful than that of the modest 
scale and proportion of the listed dwelling and would be out of keeping with and 
harmful to the character of the surroundings including the North Wessex Downs Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty. As such the application fails to comply with the aims 
of the NPPF, Policy ENV24 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan Saved Policies 
2007, Policy ADPP1 and ADPP5 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006 - 2026), 
Policies C3, and C6 of the draft West Berkshire Council Proposed Submission 
Housing Site Allocations Development Plan Document (November 2015).

RESOLVED that the Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to refuse listed 
building consent. 

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 9.10 pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 42



West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 15 December 2016 

 Item (1)
Title of Report:

16/01489/OUTMAJ 

Land at Coley Farm, Cold Ash. 
Donnington New Homes. 
Erection of 75 dwellings with associated access 
and open space improvements.  

Report to be 
considered by: District Planning Committee

Date of Meeting: 15th December 2016. 

Forward Plan Ref: Policy HSA3 in the HSADPD. 

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/01489/OUTMAJ 

Purpose of Report: For the District Planning Committee to determine the
application in question.

Recommended Action: The Western Area Planning Committee, at the meeting
on 23RD November 2016, recommended that the 
application be refused.  

Reason for decision to be 
taken:

The application, if rejected, would  comprise a departure
from the current Development Plan Policy in the Housing 
Site Allocations DPD of November 2015.   

Key background 
documentation:

Western Area Planning Committee on 23rd November 
2016. Agenda Report and draft minutes, plus update 
sheet.
Application file 16/01489/OUTMAJ. . 

Key aims.
Achieve sustainability in Council planning decisions.
Provide new housing, including affordable housing.
Promote economic growth. 
Promote sustainable communities. 

The proposals contained in this report have to be considered in order to help to achieve the 
above Council Strategy as set out in the 2013 to 2018 document.

Portfolio Member Details
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor  Hilary Cole   
E-mail Address: Hilary.cole@westberks.gov.uk
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: To be advised.

Page 43

Agenda Item 4.(1)

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/01489/OUTMAJ


West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 15 December 2016 

Contact Officer Details
Name: Michael Butler
Job Title: Principal  Planning Officer
Tel. No.: 01635519111
E-mail Address: Michael.butler@westberks.gov.uk

Implications

Policy: Core Strategy Policies – ADPP1, CS1, CS4, CS13, CS18, CS19.   
Financial: If approved the Council will receive CIL payments via the scheme 

plus new homes bonus and additional rates / Council tax per 
annum.   

Personnel: N/A

Legal/Procurement: N/A

Property: N/A

Risk Management: N/A

Equalities Impact 
Assessment:

N/A

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1     INTRODUCTION

1.1     The Western Area Planning Committee considered a report on 23rd November 
2016 regarding the application as identified above. In summary this application is 
for the erection of 75 dwellings on a greenfield site, on land to the east of Stoney 
Lane in Cold Ash parish. The land lies outside any identified settlement boundary 
as noted in saved policy HSG1 in the Saved District Local Plan. Accordingly, in 
“normal” circumstances, there would be an automatic presumption against such 
new housing in the countryside, unless for exceptional reasons as allowed for in 
policy - such as agriculturally tied dwellings. 

1.2     Policy HSA3 in the Housing Site Allocations DPD of November 2015, sets out a 
housing allocation on the application site for up to 75 dwellings, including 40% 
affordable units [30 in number], with access to be derived from Stoney Lane  
which will require widening, as the application proposes. A secondary access was 
to be considered via the application process and this has been done: see the 
main agenda report para 6.2.6 and the draft minutes. 

   

1.3    The Committee carefully and fully examined the planning merits and demerits of 
the application before them, as presented by officers and objectors. In arriving at 
their overall view of the proposal, they were concerned with three main issues. 
Firstly, highways impact, in particular the potential increase in traffic flows on the 

Page 44



West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 15 December 2016 

nearby road network, which is already congested at peak periods. Secondly they 
were concerned with the level of visual harm which would arise from this density 
of development on the site, leading to a detrimental impact on local landscape 
character, which is considered to be of high quality. Thirdly, they were concerned 
with the potential for flooding arising from the site, leading to off-site difficulties 
with drainage. For these three principal reasons the Councillors elected to resolve 
to refuse the application had they been in a position to do so. For information, if 
the application is rejected by the District Planning Committee, a fourth reason for 
refusal should be included which relates to the lack of a completed s106 planning 
obligation to deliver the benefits noted, including affordable housing.  [see 
Appendix  4].  

 

2    CONCLUSION 

2.1        In applying the planning balance, officers have concluded that given the agreed 
allocation of housing on the site in question, the principle of development has 
already been accepted by the Council. Accordingly if all technical difficulties 
arising from the proposal are satisfied [and officers have concluded that this is 
indeed the case - see main report] the development is acceptable, and indeed 
will deliver important planning benefits in terms of affordable housing and the 
widening of an existing substandard highway at no cost to the Council. There is 
also the enhancement of local play areas, to take into account and locally 
improved footway provision. The corollary of this is that should this application be 
rejected, this would fundamentally undermine the Council’s adopted plan-led 
approach to new housing in the District. This in turn will seriously weaken the 
Council’s defence of the many ongoing housing appeals which are presently  
occurring e.g. Henwick Park and Seige Cross, with North Newbury to be 
examined at Public Inquiry in January next year.       

3     RECOMMENDATION 

3.1       That the District Planning Committee GRANT planning permission to planning 
application 16/01489/OUTMAJ, subject to the first completion of the required 
s106 obligation to deliver the required  affordable units on the site, the s278 
highways works, and the public open space commuted sums,  with the conditions 
as noted on the agenda reports and update sheet.  

APPENDICES 

1  WAP Committee Report of 23rd November  2016  
2  Update report to WAP on  23rd November  2016 
3 Draft Minutes of meeting held of WAP on 23rd November 2016. 
4 Proposed reasons for refusal on the application as identified by the Committee.

DC

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

SLA Number

Organisation

Department

Comments

Date

Scale :Map Centre Coordinates :

0100024151

West Berkshire Council

09 November 2016

1:8477

16/01489/OUTMAJ

Coley Farm, Stoney Lane, Ashmore Green, Thatcham

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

Item 
No.

Application No. 
and Parish

8/13 Week Date Proposal, Location and Applicant

(2) 16/01489/OUTMAJ  

Cold Ash Parish 

Originally 30 
August 2016.
Extensions of 
time agreed. 

Erection of 75 dwellings with associated 
access and landscaping with open space 
improvements.

Land at Coley Farm, Stoney Lane, Cold Ash. 

Donnington New Homes. 

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/01489/OUTMAJ 

Recommendation Summary: The Head of Planning and Countryside be authorised to 
GRANT conditional planning permission, subject to the 
first completion of a legal obligation. 

Ward Member(s): Councillor Simpson.
 

Reason for Committee 
determination:

The Council has received in excess of 10 letters of 
objection. In addition - called in by Ward Member.

Committee Site Visit: 17th November 2016 

Contact Officer Details
Name: Michael Butler 
Job Title: Principal Planning Officer 
Tel No: (01635) 519111
E-mail Address: michael.butler@westberks.gov.uk

Page 49

http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=16/01489/OUTMAJ
mailto:michael.butler@westberks.gov.uk


West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

1. Site History

08/00348/outmaj. Construction of 33 dwellings with new outdoor play facility for those with special 
needs. Withdrawn November 2008.

2.       Publicity of Application

Site notice displayed 15th June 2016. Expiry 6th July 2016.
Amended plans - site notice displayed 27th October 2016. Expiry 10th November 2016.      

3. Consultations and Representations

Cold Ash Parish Council Objection. Overdevelopment of the site, too many dwellings, site will 
urbanise the locality, in fringes of the AONB, space for play should 
be provided on site, not on adjoining area, dangerous access to the 
site, traffic pressures in the vicinity will be exacerbated, Stoney Lane 
is too narrow, flooding and run off issues, still object as the Parish 
did to the original housing allocation. 
  

Newbury Town Council No objection/ comment. The reassurances of the applicant about the 
widening of Stoney Lane, the provision of affordable housing, the 
management of surface water run off and the play areas allayed 
future concerns of the Council.   

Highways Amended plans. Recommends conditional permission.  

Archaeologist
Site of some archaeological interest – condition to be applied re. 
survey prior to commencing on site. 

Thames Water
Grampian condition will be applied regarding drainage strategy on 
and off site should permission be granted. Water infrastructure 
capacity adequate. The SUDs proposal on site is commended by 
TW. 

Fire Service The applicant is required to provide fire hydrants on the site.

Environmental Health

Housing 

Open Space 

Waste Services

Tree Officer 

A Construction Environmental Management Plan is recommended 
in order to avoid disturbance to neighbours during building. In 
addition land contamination should be conditioned. 

The applicant is proposing 40% affordable units which accords with 
policy. [30 units]. Accept - if permission is granted a s106 obligation 
should be agreed to achieve this.  

Conditional permission, plus commuted maintenance sum be 
included in any s 106 obligation, for the open space to be adopted.   

Conditional permission is recommended. 

The present hedgerow to be cut back/ removed in order to achieve 
the access/visibility splays/widening of the road needs to be 
examined more closely – amended plans submitted. Views awaited. 

Page 50



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

Landscape 
Consultant

Planning Policy  

Minerals Officer 

SUDS 

Transport Policy

Natural England 

Education service 

The submitted LVIA is comprehensive. Key areas of concern remain 
on the effect on Stoney Lane, effects on views from that Lane, local 
changed views from footpath to the north, and effect on residential 
views on houses to the south east. Additional information 
accordingly requested. Consulted on revised LVIA submitted.  

The development of this site is accepted in principle given it is one 
of the allocations in the HSADPD. [policy HSA3] Detailed comments 
made but no fundamental objection to the layout as proposed. 

Possibility of minerals aggregates being found on site, during 
construction phase. Conditional permission recommended.

Some detailed points made, but do not object overall to the scheme 
on drainage grounds. Conditional permission is recommended.  

The application site is located in a reasonably sustainable location. 
However a cycle parking, travel plan and electric vehicle charging 
point should be conditioned in any permission.

Applying the precautionary approach given the River Lambourn 
SAC lies within the drainage catchment of the site, further SUDS 
details are requested to ensure this SSSI will not be harmed by the 
scheme.  

Whilst it is recognised that there will be an inevitable impact on local 
primary school capacity, given this is an allocated site the impact is 
recognised in the Local Plan IDP so CIL will be adequate to mitigate 
the education impact. 

Public representations 24 letters of objection received. Based upon the following issues. 
Traffic impact , poor width of Stoney Lane, impact on hedgerows, 
impact on local facilities, sewerage and drainage issues, loss of 
view, landscape impact.  No need for more housing, application is 
premature, does not respect the character of the area, increase in 
accidents likely, potential future flooding impact, impact on public 
open space. Impact on local wildlife, urbanisation of the area. 
Application should be refused.  
6 additional letters of objection following the receipt of amended 
plans. Concerns similar to the above, plus specific impact on trees 
and hedgerows, drainage issues, sustainability issues [lack of] poor 
location to schools, traffic, poor design. Application should be 
rejected.    

4. Policy Considerations

National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014. 
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026. 
HSADPD November 2015. Policies GS1 and HSA3 – Coley Farm.
Policies ADPP1, CS1, CS4, CS6, CS13, CS14, CS16, CS18, and CS19. 

Page 51



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

5.         Description of development.

5.1   The application comprises the demolition of an existing farmhouse with associated farm 
buildings and the erection of 75 dwellings with two associated accesses onto Stoney Lane 
to the north east of Newbury, but in Cold Ash Parish. The site area is 3.75ha in extent 
[4.122ha including the revised access arrangements] and comprises, in addition to the 
building above, pastureland and so it is effectively greenfield land. It also currently lies 
outside the defined settlement boundary of the town of Newbury and  indeed Cold Ash.   To 
the north lies a substantial hedgerow and fields, to the west Stoney Lane and existing 
housing, to the south existing public open space and existing dwellings - Wansey Gardens  
and Laud Close. To the east, lies further open fields. The application is submitted in outline 
form at this stage with the means of access and layout to be agreed at this juncture. The 
overall density of the proposal will equate to 20 units per ha. 

5.2  As part of the application scheme, it is proposed to include 40% of the dwellings for 
affordable purposes, which will be located around the site, in accord with policy CS6 in the 
Core Strategy. In addition, in order to provide SUDS capacity on this sloping site [north to 
south] there are to be two basins, the eastern one to be fully landscaped. In addition, 
Stoney Lane itself is to be widened to a minimum of a 5.5m carriageway width, from the 
Pine Ridge access to the principal vehicle access facing “Wayside” in the west. In order to 
satisfactorily accommodate this width, the hedgerow will be required to be cut back, with a 
new footpath accommodated within the Council owned existing public open space leading 
up from opposite No. 63 Stoney Lane to the north. In order to continue this path from the 
main access one will be accommodated in the site up to the next access point opposite 
“Newlyn”. 

5.3   In terms of the type and scale of housing proposed, there is to be a total of seventeen 4/5 
bed houses, twenty four 3 bed houses, twenty two 2 bed houses, four 1 bed flats and eight 
2 bed maisonettes. [75 total]. As regards on site parking provision, this will accord with the 
requirements of policy P1 in the HSADPD as revised / modified. This will mean a total of 
162 allocated spaces [including driveways and garage ports] 24 garages, 17 non allocated 
spaces and 11 visitor spaces. This means a total of 214 spaces on site which is an average 
overall of 2.85 spaces per unit. 

5.4   The case officer has formally advertised the application as a Departure from the 
Development Plan as, when it was first submitted in May 2016, it was considered that it still 
comprised such a Departure. Substantially more weight can however now be applied to the 
application as it is post first stage modification process in regard to the Inspectors report, on 
the Council HSADPD. In addition the application was not required to be formally screened 
under the 2011 Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations [as amended in 2015] since 
under Schedule 2 part 10 [b] [urban development projects] the site is less than 5 ha in 
extent, it is fewer than 150 dwellings and it does not lie in the AONB. 

6.         Consideration of the Development 

The application will be examined under the following considerations. 

6.1 - Policy position.
6.2 - Access issues.
6.3 - Visual impact.
6.4 - Other issues.  

6.1 -     Policy position. 

6.1.1. The Committee will appreciate that the application site is one of the many housing allocated 
sites in the District proposed by the Council in order to achieve the relevant 5 year housing 

Page 52



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

land supply, in order to meet the needs of the District’s population for new housing, 
including affordable accommodation. In the HSADPD of 2015, Policy GS1 sets out the 
relevant development control criteria which needs to be addressed when assessing such 
applications. These [inter alia] correspond to a masterplan which will coordinate the 
provision of the necessary infrastructure, an integrated water supply and drainage strategy, 
including no detrimental impact on interests of ecological importance, measures to improve 
accessibility, internal walking routes, mitigation of impact on the local road network, 
consideration of mineral deposits, and the submission of a  LVIA where necessary. In 
addition the specific site allocation policy as noted under HSA3, sets out the above issues 
in more detail, in particular in seeking to reduce the impact of the development on Stoney 
Lane. Accordingly, it is correct to say that assuming all the above “technical“ issues are 
considered to be satisfactory by officers, then the principle of the new build on this 
greenfield site  outside any settlement boundary is accepted, under the Core Strategy.   

6.1.2  The HSADPD has been under the scrutiny of the Inspectorate over the summer as the 
Committee will know. The Inspector has recently set out his proposed modifications to the 
Plan [without prejudice] which do not include any further alterations to the allocation 
concerned. Accordingly substantial weight can now be attached to the application as 
being in conformity with the present Council Development Plan. As such, if the Committee 
are minded to approve the application it is not required to be referred to DPC. However the 
corollary of this is that if the Committee are minded to refuse the application it would need 
to be referred up to DPC.

POLICY ANALYSIS.

a - Policy ADPP2. This sets out the need for Newbury to accommodate new housing sites 
on its periphery as allocated, as identified in the SHLAA.

 
b - Policy CS1 Delivering new homes. This is self explanatory, but it is recognised that in 
terms of the “sequential test” for housing, the erection of dwellings on greenfield sites is 
certainly lower in the hierarchy than say, for example, brown field sites. 

c - Policy CS4 Housing type and mix. This policy seeks to obtain lower housing densities 
where necessary. For example figures of below 30 dwellings per ha [gross] can be 
acceptable. This is the case in this application which is just 20 units per ha. This is done in 
order to respect the prevailing suburban nature of the surrounding housing to the west and 
south. 

d - Policy CS5 Infrastructure Delivery. The Committee will be aware of the new CIL 
charging procedure and the Education service have accepted that, notwithstanding the 
impact the additional school age children will have particularly upon the local primary 
school catchments, CIL will be adequate in this regard. The additional highways works 
needed will be done at the Developers’ expense via a s278 agreement. 

e - Policy CS6 Affordable housing. This requires 40% of the units to be affordable. The 
applicants have accepted this. No viability assessment has been submitted in this respect.

f - Policy CS13 Transport. This relates to how new development will have its transport 
impact reduced where at all possible. This is addressed in the access situation, but, in 
summary, the officer considers the highways / access issues are now acceptable. 

g - Policy CS14 Design principles. It is considered that the proposed layout addresses all 
the concerns raised by officers although not the objectors. In particular, the additional set 
back of the new housing away from Stoney Lane in the amended plans has helped to 
reduce the visual impact upon the rural nature of the Lane in question, the closest building 
to the carriageway edge [east] will be plot 21 which is 10m distant. In addition, in relation to 
surrounding existing dwellings the nearest dwelling across Stoney Lane will be Wayside at 

Page 53



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

30m distance from plot 72. To the south plot 42 will be 20m away from the nearest dwelling 
in Laud Close. These separations are all believed to be entirely adequate. 

h - Policy CS16 Flooding. The Council SUDS officer has accepted the scheme as 
proposed and is recommending conditional permission. In addition Thames Water are 
expressing the need for a Grampian condition in relation to surface water and sewerage 
output. Accordingly, notwithstanding some of the objections raised by local people, it is 
considered the scheme will comply with this policy; development cannot begin until the pre 
conditions are met. 

i - Policy CS17 Biodiversity. Natural England have raised some concerns over the 
potential impact of increased [possibly polluting] surface water drainage seeping into the 
catchment of the River Lambourn, a SSSI. Whilst these concerns are understood, it is 
considered that the distance to the Lambourn is considerable and secondly the pre 
conditions in the drainage section above will remove objections in this regard.  

j - Policy CS18 Green infrastructure. This includes grasslands and public open space. 
Clearly, in allocating this housing site, there will be a loss of open agricultural land which is 
regrettable. On the other hand, the application will enhance the present open space to the 
south with a new Local Area of Play, with enhanced landscaping around sections of the 
site. Measured against this is the inevitable impact on the attractive and mature hedge on 
the east side of Stoney Lane. So it is argued that in fact the application does not comply 
with the policy, but must be weighed against the other benefits arising. 

k - Policy CS19 Landscape character. This will be considered in a separate section, but 
suffice it to say that the officer is satisfied that this policy is met, notwithstanding the 
obvious and inevitable relative degree of  visual impact a scheme of 75 dwellings will have 
upon the area.

6.1.4   In conclusion, with the exception of policies CS18 and CS19, officers consider that the 
application is entirely policy compliant.   

6.2.      Access Issues.                                 

6.2.1   The applicant has submitted amended plans which have been consulted upon, in order to 
improve the present access situation to the site. The following are the major points for the 
Committee to take into account. 

6.2.2   The applicant has undertaken another speed survey on Stoney Lane adjoining the site, in 
order to ensure that the submitted forward visibility splays at the two principal vehicle 
accesses into the site, are sufficient to ensure proper safety. This has recorded an existing  
85th percentile figure of 34mph in both directions. This is considered to be acceptable in 
terms of the splays which can be achieved. This is important since if they were required to 
be greater, the hedgerow would need to be cut back even more, and / or the proposed 
internal layout revised. The sight lines to be provided are 2.4 x 55.0 metres in both 
directions for all proposed accesses. This is in compliance with the UK governments 
Manual for Streets. Highway Officers contend the all accesses comply to standards with 
regards to width and sight lines.

6.2.3 Secondly, improvements to Stoney Lane include the following: removal of the existing 
30mph sign at Hartgrove Farm, to the north of the site along with the provision of  new 
traffic calming gateway features. A continuous footway link shall be provided southwards by 
the  relocation of a new footway into the public open space, to ensure linkage to the 
existing footways fronting No. 63 Stoney Lane.  Stoney Lane will be widened  to 5.5m, from 
the Pine Ridge access point up to the second site access in the north. All these new 
features will ensure that, notwithstanding the increase in traffic movements arising   this will 
be adequate for local site /road safety. The Committee will know that a number of the public 

Page 54



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

objections are based upon such traffic generation / safety issues. The applicant’s highway 
consultants have projected traffic levels from the development with reference to the Trip 
Rate Information Computer System. This is accepted  standard practice. Between 08.00 
and 09.00 hours it is projected that 29 cars will leave the site with 14 arriving. Between 
17.00 and 18.00 hours it is projected that 14 cars will leave the site with 27 arriving. Traffic 
has been distrusted using census data which again is very standard practice. From it is 
projected that 96% of traffic will travel to and from the south, and then 70% will travel to and 
from the B4009.    

6.2.4  Consequent to the above the applicant has re-examined the potential impact upon the 
B4009 junctions into Newbury, particularly at the mini roundabout of Shaw Hill and 
Turnpike. Junction 9 software has been used to model these new mini roundabouts. The 
results reveal as expected, that there is congestion over peak periods. However with an 
increase at most of just 3% from the development under consideration tonight, on Kiln 
Road, it will have a negligible impact.  It has  thus been concluded that no additional 
highways works are justified having regard to the flows noted, and  having regard to the 
advice on such matters in para. 32 of the NPPF. 

6.2.5   In terms of the site’s internal layout [which is being determined at this outline stage] the 
relevant forward visibility splays are acceptable for the noted 20mph speeds as designed, 
with suitable shallow road tables imposed for pedestrian crossover points. For pedestrian 
connectivity, this is improved to the south into the public open space with a total of 3 points 
of entrance. In terms of parking provision this actually exceeds the criteria set out in policy 
P1 in the revised HSADPD of 2015, for the parking zone in which the site is located. This 
should mean that no additional off site parking pressures will be caused, which is already 
occurring to the south opposite the Pine Ridge entrance point. 

6.2.6 Next, the applicant was formally requested to examine an additional vehicle access option 
to the south via Laud Close. This option was not proposed due to third party intervening 
land ownership, which would have created a ransom strip situation for the scheme. This in 
turn [without prejudice] would / could have raised future viability issues, which in turn could 
have reduced the level of affordable housing proposed on site. In terms of the marginal 
highway gains to be achieved, officers considered this viability risk was not supported, in 
terms of the delivery of housing in the District. 

6.2.7 Finally, it is proposed that most of the new internal road network will be adopted in the 
future. Given this the applicant was required to demonstrate that tracking through the site 
for refuse collection vehicles was acceptable. This has been done as has maximum carry 
distances for refuse collections for future residents. 

6.3.      Landscape impact.

6.3.1 The application site is on rising land to the north east of Newbury; the highest point is 116m 
AOD and the lowest is 98m AOD – a fall of 18m which is quite significant over the distance 
involved. However, the site is naturally well self contained, by virtue of existing mature 
vegetation and topography. Accordingly, longer distance views of the site are generally well 
screened, although it is of course acknowledged that future housing on the site will remain 
visible to the public domain in both short and medium distance vistas. The applicant has 
submitted two detailed landscape and visual impact assessments [LVIA] for the original set 
of plans and the amended set. The case officer has examined both of these, in conjunction 
with an assessment by the Council retained consultant on the first report submitted, at the 
time of writing this report: a further report will be prepared by the Consultant on the revised 
plans which will be reported on the update. 

6.3.2  The initial Consultant’s report concluded, in summary, the following:  the key landscape 
issues were impact on the areas wider character, the loss of vegetation along Stoney Lane, 
impacting upon its semi wooded rural nature, the potential impact upon native trees on the 

Page 55



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

northern and eastern boundaries, including two TPO oak trees. In response to this the 
applicants, in submitting their revised plans, included the following points of improvement:-

1 - the indication of fresh planting on the western margins to recompense the loss of 
existing hedgerow, facilitated by the moving eastwards away from the lane of the whole 
scheme - see above. 
2 - plans clearly indicating the retention of as much vegetation as possible on the north and 
east boundaries, including the TPO oaks, with additional planting shown to be controlled by 
an appropriate condition. 
3 - the planting up of the SuDs basins particularly on the east and south perimeters, so 
softening the wider visual impact of the new housing from these two aspects. This is 
particularly important in terms of the short distance impacts caused on existing dwellings to 
the south of the site in Wansey Gardens and Laud Close. 
4 - the improvement of the existing public open space to the south [paid for by the 
Developer] which will have an added benefit.

6.3.3.  As a consequence, the applicants consider that whilst some shorter distance views will 
have a moderate to slight impact [i.e. those directly from Stoney Lane and from the south] 
most impacts will be slight, with the overall inherent attractive character of the area not 
being harmed to such a degree as to merit rejection of the site, having close regard to 
policy CS19 in the Core Strategy, and the advice contained in the NPPF of 2012. The 
response of the Council’s consultant on this issue will be reported, but [without prejudice] it 
is not expected that the overall conclusions will change in regard to the visual impact 
assessment. To conclude, it is considered that there is no overriding reason to refuse the 
application on landscape character or impact grounds. 

6.4.      Other issues.

6.4.1  The development, assuming it is approved and built out, will be subject to the CIL charging 
schedule currently at £75/m2 for the location, for net gain in residential floor space. Since 
no detailed figures are available at this outline stage, the precise charging figure will be 
known at the reserved matters stage. The CIL monies will mitigate the impact of the new 
occupiers [perhaps 181 in total] on the Council’s facilities, services and infrastructure in 
accord with policy CS5 in the Core Strategy. It is important for the Committee to note that 
no separate s106 contribution figure is being recommended by Education, notwithstanding 
the known impact upon local schools, especially primary. The application, in addition, if 
approved must be subject to the completion of a legal agreement to obtain the 40% 
affordable housing, and an access agreement for the new footway in the public open space 
over Council land presumably under s278 of the 1980 Highways Act. The latter will also 
cover the necessary highways works identified above all at the Developer’s expense. In 
addition a s106 obligation should include a commuted maintenance sum for the public open 
space if it is to be adopted.   

6.4.2    Notwithstanding the points raised above in the policy section under flooding, the applicants 
agent has submitted an additional technical note from their Consulting Engineers in reposte 
to an objection from a member of the public,   on flooding grounds. This  note has been on 
the public file since the 11th November. The main considerations are that the new V ditch 
noted on the south boundary is not related to the Developments SUDS proposals per se, 
but related to the sites current mostly greenfield use.  On the eastern boundary the 
proposed storage pond will not only adequately mitigate the impact of the new scheme 
should it be approved, but also actually improve the present situation with regards to 
current and future flooding potential. It is concluded in the light of no objection from Thames 
Water and the Council SUDs team that drainage is not an issue on the site which would 
merit refusal. The case officer concurs with this overall conclusion.  

Page 56



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

7.0       Conclusion 

7.1. The Committee will appreciate that this application is acceptable in principle given its 
allocation in the Local Plan. The application now needs to be addressed against the 
relevant sustainability principles in the NPPF. In economic terms, the application is to be 
encouraged as not only will the local construction sector benefit from the scheme being 
built out, but also the additional expenditure of circa 180 residents will assist the local 
economy. In social terms the application is again to be encouraged, since 30 affordable 
units will be provided, with enhanced public open space facilities. Finally in environmental 
terms, it is inevitable that the development will have a degree of both highways and local 
visual impact on the area for the reasons identified above. However balanced against this is 
the delivery of 75 additional homes in the District, important to meet the District housing 
needs. The drainage impact has also been successfully mitigated by the inclusion of SUDS 
basins.

7.2.  Accordingly, given the strong reasons to approve the application, it is recommended that 
conditional planning permission be granted for application 16/01489/outmaj.                                                        

8.         Recommendation.  

The Head of Planning and Countryside be authorized to GRANT Conditional Planning 
Permission subject to the first completion of a s106 planning obligation.  

CONDITIONS.   

Time limit 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before whichever is the later of the 
following dates:-
 
1 - 3 years from the date of this decision
2 - the expiration of 2 years from the date of the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the 
case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such matter approved. 

Reason:  to clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.

Reserved matters 

 2. Full details of the external appearance of the housing, the scale, and the landscaping of the 
site, the ('reserved matters') shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority not later than the 
expiration of 3 years beginning with the date of this permission, and shall be approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority before any building or other operations start on site.  This condition 
shall apply irrespective of any indications as to the reserved matters which have been given in the 
submitted application and the development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
approved details.

Reason:  The application is not accompanied by sufficient details of the reserved matters to enable 
the Local Planning Authority to give proper consideration to those matters and such consideration 
is required to ensure that the development is in accordance with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.

Drainage strategy 

 3. Development shall not commence until a drainage strategy detailing any on and/or off site 
drainage works, has been submitted to and approved by, the local planning authority in 
consultation with the sewerage undertaker. No discharge of foul or surface water from the site shall 
be accepted into the public system until the drainage works referred to in the strategy have been 
completed"

Page 57



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

Reason: The development may lead to sewage flooding; to ensure that sufficient capacity is made 
available to cope with the new development; and in order to avoid adverse environmental impact 
upon the community, in accord with policy CS14 in the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 
2026.

Hours of working.

 4. The hours of work for all contractors for the duration of the site development shall unless 
otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority in writing be limited to:

7.30 am to 6.00 p.m. on Mondays to Fridays 8.30 am to 1.00 p.m. on Saturdays and NO work shall 
be carried out on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accord with policy CS14 in 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026.

Highways  layout.

 5. The detailed layout of the site shall comply with the Local Planning Authority's standards in 
respect of road and footpath design and vehicle parking and turning provision. The road and 
footpath design should be to a standard that is adoptable as public highway. This condition shall 
apply notwithstanding any indications to these matters which have been given in the current 
application. All the required s278 and s38 agreements shall be completed prior to the first 
occupation of any dwelling. 

Reason: In the interest of road safety and flow of traffic, and waste disposal. .  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District 
Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

CMS 

 6. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The statement shall provide for:

(a) The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(b) Loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(d) The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays and 
facilities for public viewing
(e) Wheel washing facilities
(f) Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
(g) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction works

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of adjoining land uses and occupiers and in the interests of 
highway safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework (March 2012), Policies CS5 and CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026), Policy TRANS 1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007). 

Removal of permitted development rights.

7. Irrespective of the provisions of the current Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015  (or any subsequent revision), no additions or extensions to the 
dwellings shall be built or ancillary buildings or structures erected within the curtilages, unless 

Page 58



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

permission in writing has been granted by the Local Planning Authority on an application made for 
the purpose.

Reason: To prevent the over-development of the site and to safeguard the amenities of 
neighbouring properties in accordance with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.

Fire hydrants 

8. No development shall commence until details of fire hydrant provision on the site has been 
submitted and agreed with the LPA. The development must be carried out in strict accord with this 
scheme prior to any dwelling occupation.

Reason: To protect public safety in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.

Piling

9. If piling on the site is required then auger piling shall be used wherever possible to minimise 
noise and vibration unless otherwise agreed with the LPA.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, in accord with the advice in 
policy CS14 in the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006 to 2026. 

Contamination.

10. Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority, development other than that 
required to be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation must not commence until 
conditions 1 to 4 have been complied with. If unexpected contamination is found after development 
has begun, development must be halted on that part of the site affected by the unexpected 
contamination to the extent specified by the Local Planning Authority in writing until condition 4 has 
been complied with in relation to that contamination. 

1. Site Characterisation 
An investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning 
application, must be completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of 
any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme 
are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk 
assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must be 
produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
The report of the findings must include: 

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

o human health, 

o property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service 
lines and pipes, 

o adjoining land, 

o groundwaters and surface waters, 

o ecological systems, 

o archeological sites and ancient monuments; 

Page 59



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 

2. Submission of Remediation Scheme 
A detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and 
historical environment must be prepared, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation 
objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The 
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 

3. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme 
The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 
commencement of development other than that required to carry out remediation, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two 
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification 
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and is 
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination 
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development 
that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning 
Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 
requirements of condition 1, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of condition 2, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification 
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority 
in accordance with condition 3. 

If required:

5. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance 
A monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the 
proposed remediation over a period to be agreed with LPA, and the provision of reports on the 
same must be prepared, both of which are subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the remediation 
objectives have been achieved, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the monitoring and 
maintenance carried out must be produced, and submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. 

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological 
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks 
to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. In accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012. 

Storage of refuse 

11. No development shall take place until details of the provision for the storage of refuse and 
recycling materials for the dwellings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Page 60



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

Planning Authority.  The dwellings shall not be occupied until the refuse and recycling facilities 
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained for this purpose 
thereafter.

Reason:   To ensure that there is adequate and safe refuse/recycling facilities within the site.  This 
condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), 
Policies CS13 and CS14 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Supplementary 
Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

SUDS 

12. The dwellings hereby permitted shall not be occupied until the sustainable drainage 
measures identified in  the approved layout plans  have been implemented/provided in accordance 
with the approved details.  The sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained in the 
approved condition thereafter.

Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012),  Policy CS16 
of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning 
Document Quality Design (June 2006).

Minerals 
 
13. No development shall take place until a statement of mineral exploration and associated 
development management plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. This statement shall include: 
i. A method for investigating the extent and viability of the potential construction aggregate 
mineral resource beneath the application site, particularly the eastern end of the site where it is 
proposed to locate the sustainable urban drainage system. 
ii. A methodology that ensures that construction aggregates that can be viably recovered 
during development operations are recovered and put to beneficial use, such use to be agreed with 
the Planning Authority, and such an agreement not to be unreasonably refused; and
iii. A method to record the quantity of recovered mineral (for use on and off site) and the 
reporting of this quantity to the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure compliance with Policies 1, 2 and 2A of the Replacement Minerals Local Plan 
for Berkshire to ensure the appropriate use of the indentified  mineral resources located beneath 
the application site.

Amended plans 

14. The development must be constructed in strict accord with the layout and revised access 
arrangements as submitted on the 25th October 2016 to the LPA --namely plan numbers BFM 08--
revised red line plan, drawing numbers 58286 -6C, 58286-5C, and the plans as contained in the 
updated technical note on highways ITB 9002-OO3C received on the 25th October 2016.

Reason: To clarify the permission in accord with the advice in the DMPO of 2015.

Travel plan.

15. No development shall commence until the owner has finalised and received approval in 
writing from the Local Planning Authority of a detailed Residential Travel Plan to include a firm list 
of commitments.  The owner shall implement the approved Travel Plan from first 
operation/occupation of the development and take reasonably practicable steps to achieve and 
maintain the agreed targets within the timescales set out in the plan.

Page 61



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

Reason: To ensure the development reduces reliance on private motor vehicles.  This condition is 
imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of 
the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District 
Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007), Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design 
(June 2006), and Policy LTP SC1 of the Local Transport Plan for West Berkshire 2011-2026

Cycle and motorcycle storage 

16. Full details of secure cycle storage in accordance with the West Berkshire Council 'Cycle 
and Motorcycle Advice and Standards for New Development, November 2014 shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to development commencing.  The 
approved cycle storage shall be provided prior to the occupation of each dwelling and thereafter 
retained for this purpose at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development reduces reliance on private motor vehicles and assists with 
the parking, storage and security of cycles.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policies CS13 and CS 14 of the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and Policy LTP K13 of the Local Transport Plan for West 
Berkshire 2011-2026.

Electric charging points.

17. The buried infrastructure to enable future residents to fit an electric vehicle charging point 
without recourse to excavating, other than within their allocated parking space(s), should be 
provided for each house and shared parking courts on the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development provides for predicted future growth in ultra low emission 
vehicle ownership. This condition is imposed in accordance with point ix. of Policy P1 of the West 
Berkshire Housing Site Allocations DPD; and West Berkshire Council Local Transport Plan, 
policies LTP K1 (Travel Choice), LTP SC3 (New Technology), and LTP K5 (Climate Change).

Archaeology.

18.   No development shall take place within the application area until the applicant has secured 
the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter the development shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved 
statement.

Reason: To ensure that any significant archaeological remains that are found are adequately 
recorded in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.  

Stoney  Lane width.

19.     No dwelling shall be occupied until the carriageway of Stoney Lane, between the northwest 
corner of the development site and Pine Ridge has been widened in accordance with drawing no. 
ITB9002-GA-001 rev.J and any statutory undertaker's equipment or street furniture re-located in 
accordance with current WBC carriageway standards.
               
Reason: In the interest of road safety and to ensure adequate and unobstructed provision for 
pedestrians and/or cyclists. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026).

Speed  limit. 

20.      No development shall commence until details of how the '30/National' speed limit change 

Page 62



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

will be relocated approximately 220metres north, together with an entry feature and associated 
street lighting have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Such details shall show how the speed limit will be relocated including details of the gateway 
feature and associated lighting on Stoney Lane.  No dwelling shall be occupied until the speed limit 
change has been relocated and street lighting has been provided in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason: To ensure the development is served by an adequately lit highway in order to maintain 
road safety and the flow of traffic.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012), Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026) and Policy TRANS1 of the West Berkshire District Local Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 
2007).

Footway 

21.      No dwelling shall be occupied until a two metre wide footway to be constructed on the east 
side of Stoney Lane, between the southwest corner of the development site and no.63 Stoney 
Lane, including a dropped kerb crossing over Stoney Lane, have been constructed in accordance 
with the approved drawing(s) and any statutory undertaker's equipment or street furniture located 
in the position of this footway has been re-sited to provide an unobstructed footway.
               
Reason: In the interest of road safety and to ensure adequate and unobstructed provision for 
pedestrians. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework 
(March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

Forward visibility splays. 

22.     No dwelling shall be occupied until the visibility splays at the two new accesses on to Stoney 
Lane have been provided in accordance with drawing number ITB9002-GA-001 rev.J. The land 
within these visibility splays shall thereafter be kept free of all obstructions to visibility over a height 
of 0.6 metres above the carriageway level.

Reason: In the interests of road safety.  This condition is imposed in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) and Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 
(2006-2026).

Children’s play area specification.

23.   No development shall commence until a specification for the children’s play area has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. The play area shall then be built out in strict 
accord with the details as approved.

Reason . To ensure good play facilities in accord with the advice in the NPPF of 2012.   

INFORMATIVE:

 1 This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development 
having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to secure high quality 
appropriate development.  In this application whilst there has been a need to balance conflicting 
considerations, the local planning authority has worked proactively with the applicant to secure 
and accept what is considered to be a development which improves the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area.

Page 63



West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 23 November 2016 

 2 The development hereby approved results in a requirement to make payments to the Council as 
part of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) procedure.  A Liability Notice setting out further 
details, and including the amount of CIL payable will be sent out separately from this Decision 
Notice.  You are advised to read the Liability Notice and ensure that a Commencement Notice is 
submitted to the authority prior to the commencement of the development.  Failure to submit the 
Commencement Notice will result in the loss of any exemptions claimed, and the loss of any right 
to pay by instalments, and additional costs to you in the form of surcharges.  For further details 
see the website at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

 3 This Decision Notice must be read in conjunction with the terms of a Legal Agreement of the ****.  
You are advised to ensure that you have all the necessary documents before development starts 
on site.

DC

Page 64



Item (2) Application No. 16/01489/OUTMAJ Page 1 of 3

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE
ON 23 NOVEMBER 2016

UPDATE REPORT
Item 
No: (2) Application 

No: 16/01489/OUTMAJ Page No. 275 - 292

Site: Coley Farm, Stoney Lane, Ashmore Green

Planning Officer 
Presenting:

Michael Butler 

Member Presenting:  N/A.

Parish Representative 
speaking:

Mr Mike Munro

Objector(s) speaking: Mrs Veronica Koroleva
Mr Keith Benjamin

Supporter(s) speaking: N/A

Applicant/Agent speaking: Ms Rebecca Humble – WYG
Mr Mark Norgate – Donnington New Homes
Mr Ben Thomas – iTransport
Mr Glenn Charles – C&A Consulting Engineers

Ward Member(s): Councillor Garth Simpson

Update Information:

For clarification, should the application be resolved to be refused by Committee, the Development Control 
Manager, under his delegated powers, has determined that the application should be referred up to District 
Planning Committee because the application now conforms to the emerging Development Plan and to 
reject it would accordingly be contrary to that Adopted Plan. 

Additional SUDS condition recommended :-

No development shall take place until details of sustainable drainage measures to manage surface water within the 
site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

These details shall:
a) Incorporate the implementation of Sustainable Drainage methods (SuDS) in accordance with the Non-

Page 65



Item (2) Application No. 16/01489/OUTMAJ Page 2 of 3

Statutory Technical Standards for SuDS (March 2015), the SuDS Manual C753 (2015) and West Berkshire 
Council local standards;

b) Include and be informed by a ground investigation survey which establishes the soil characteristics, 
infiltration rate and groundwater levels;

d) Include a drainage strategy for surface water run-off from the site since no discharge of surface water 
from the site will be accepted into the public system by the Lead Local Flood Authority;

e) Include attenuation measures to retain rainfall run-off within the site and allow discharge from the site to an 
existing watercourse at no greater than Greenfield run-off rates;

f) Include construction drawings, cross-sections and specifications of all proposed SuDS measures within the 
site;

g) Include run-off calculations, discharge rates, infiltration and storage capacity calculations for the proposed 
SuDS measures based on a 1 in 100 year storm +40% for climate change; [see note opposite regarding 
possible variations to C/C rate]

i) Include flood water exceedance routes, both on and off site; Include flow routes such as low flow, 
overflow and exceedance routes;

j) Include pre-treatment methods to prevent any pollution or silt entering SuDS features or causing any 
contamination to the soil or groundwater;

k) Ensure any permeable paved areas are designed and constructed in accordance with manufacturers 
guidelines.

l) Ensure any permeable areas are constructed on a permeable sub-base material such as Type 3 or 
reduced fines Type 1 material as appropriate;

m) Include details of how the SuDS measures will be maintained and managed after completion.  These 
details shall be provided as part of a handover pack for subsequent purchasers and owners of the 
property/premises;

n) Include a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development.  This plan shall 
incorporate arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, management 
and maintenance by a residents’ management company or any other arrangements to secure the 
operation of the sustainable drainage scheme throughout its lifetime;

o) Include a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) for developments located in areas at risk of flooding ( Flood Zone 
2 and 3) or developments larger than 1 hectare;

q) Include measures with reference to Environmental issues which protect or enhance the ground water 
quality and provide new habitats where possible.

r) Apply for an Ordinary Watercourse Consent in case of surface water discharge into a watercourse (i.e 
stream, ditch etc)

v) Assess the volume of run-off from Stoney Lane uphill of the site entrance and accommodate this flow 
within the site drainage scheme.

The above sustainable drainage measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the   
dwellings hereby permitted are occupied . The sustainable drainage measures shall be maintained   and managed 
in accordance with the condition thereafter. 

Reason:   To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner; to prevent the increased risk of 
flooding; to improve and protect water quality, habitat and amenity and ensure future maintenance of the surface 
water drainage system can be, and is carried out in an appropriate and efficient manner.  This condition is applied in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-
2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).  A pre-condition is necessary 
because insufficient detailed information accompanies the application; sustainable drainage measures may require 
work to be undertaken throughout the construction phase and so it is necessary to approve these details before any 
development takes place.

Condition 12 on the agenda can be deleted accordingly. 

Additional consultation responses. 

Waste Management are now content with the amended plans. 

Page 66



Item (2) Application No. 16/01489/OUTMAJ Page 3 of 3

Newbury Town Council - No objection on the amended plans. 

Tree Officer - Has examined the concerns of local objectors in regard to the loss of hedgerow along the 
east boundary of Stoney Lane, and the potential impact on local trees on the west boundary due to the 
widening of the highway proposed. He concludes that the development, whilst having an impact on green 
infrastructure as identified in policy CS18 in the Core Strategy is capable of approval, subject to conditions. 
These correspond to a landscaping scheme, arboricultural method statement, tree protection scheme, and 
management plan. These can be applied at the reserved matters stage [if planning permission is granted] 
and will still be pre-conditions as no development can commence until a reserved matters application has 
been approved and all relevant pre conditions discharged. It is not necessary to apply these conditions at 
this outline stage.  

Three additional letters of objection received on the amended plans since the report was written. Concerns 
as noted before on the agenda report, i.e. access, drainage, impact on hedgerow, lack of infrastructure, 
visual impact. One letter of objection noting that if the applicant had been required to provide suitable on 
site public open space [rather than the existing off site provision] the number of dwellings would have been 
required to fall. Final letter of objection welcomes the new footway section, and the widening of Stoney 
Lane although there will still be an impact from increased traffic flows. Does not consider the new access 
via Laud Close to be a good idea since this would exacerbate local drainage flows. Still objects overall.    

Natural England have now removed their initial objection on the lack of information on SUDS which could 
have resulted in a detrimental impact on the catchment of the River Kennet and Lambourn SSSIs. With the 
addition of the SUDS condition above the additional detail provided, with additional conditions 
recommended by NE, this  will be sufficient to allay fears regarding the SSSI catchment. 
 
A video has been received from a member of the public indicating the current drainage problems on site, 
in his opinion.

The Council landscape consultant has formally responded on the amended plans received. Her 
conclusions are that the following issues - 2 and 3 would need to be secured at the reserved matters 
planning stage.
1 - Acceptable that the revised layout moves the overall development 2.5m to the east so allowing more of 
the hedgerow to be retained. 
2 - A strategy for the treatment of the internal and external boundaries will need to be developed.
3 - A strategy for the long term management of the site landscaping will need to be developed. 

The case officer is satisfied that given the additional conditions recommended by the Tree Officer [see 
above] the above issues can be resolved.     

Typographical error. Para 6.2.3 Line 3rd from last. ”distrusted” should read “distributed”. 

It is understood that there are no personal injury accidents recorded along Stoney Lane on the data base 
derived from Council highways records.  

DC

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



DRAFT
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

EXTRACT FROM THE DRAFT MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
WEDNESDAY, 23 NOVEMBER 2016

Councillors Present: Jeff Beck, Paul Bryant (Vice-Chairman), Hilary Cole, James Cole, 
Adrian Edwards, James Fredrickson, Paul Hewer, Clive Hooker (Chairman), Anthony Pick and 
Virginia von Celsing

Also Present: Michael Butler (Principal Planning Officer), Rachel Craggs (Principal Policy 
Officer (Equalities)), Paul Goddard (Team Leader - Highways Development Control), Debra 
Inston (Principal Conservation & Design Officer), Gary Rayner (Development Control Manager), 
Jo Reeves (Principal Policy Officer), Shiraz Sheikh (Principal Solicitor) and Peta Stoddart-
Crompton (Public Relations Officer)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Dennis Benneyworth, Councillor 
Billy Drummond and Councillor Garth Simpson

Councillor Absent: Councillor Howard Bairstow

PART I

33. Minutes
It was noted that the minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2016 had been 
reissued following publication of the agenda following the identification of some 
typographical errors. The revised minutes were approved as a true and correct record 
and signed by the Chairman.

34. Declarations of Interest
Councillor Hilary Cole declared an interest in all Agenda Items, but reported that, 
although her interest was a personal registrable interest, and not a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, she determined to remain to take part in the debate but not vote on the matter.
Councillor Hewer declared a personal interest in all Agenda Items but reported that, as 
his interest was a personal interest, but not a disclosable pecuniary interest, he 
determined to remain to take part in the debate and vote on the matter.
Councillors Pick, Beck, Edwards declared an interest in Agenda Item 6 and 7, but 
reported that, as their interest was a personal or a other registrable interest, but not a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, they determined to remain to take part in the debate and 
vote on the matter.
Councillor Fredrickson declared that he might have predetermined Agenda Items 6 and 7 
and therefore he determined to address the Committee in his capacity as Ward Member 
but would not take part in the debate or vote on this matter. He also gave his apologies 
for Item 6 and only joined the Committee for its public session.
Councillors Pick, Beck and von Celsing declared that they had been lobbied regarding 
Agenda Items 6 and 7.
Councillors Pick, Hilary Cole, Beck, James Cole and Edwards declared that they had 
been lobbied regarding Agenda Item 8.

Page 69



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

35. Schedule of Planning Applications
39. Application No. and Parish: 16/01489/OUTMAJ Land at Coley Farm, 

Stoney Lane, Cold Ash
(Councillor Hilary Cole declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 8 by virtue of the fact 
that she was the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing and also the Chairman of the 
District Planning Committee. As her interest was personal and not a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, she determined to remain to take part in the debate but not vote on 
the matter.) 
(Councillor Paul Hewer declared a personal interest in Agenda item 8 by virtue of the fact 
that he was employed by a social housing provider. As his interest was personal and not 
a prejudicial or a disclosable pecuniary interest he determined to take part in the debate 
and vote on the matter).
(Councillors Hilary Cole, James Cole and Edwards declared that they had been lobbied 
on this application.)
1. The Committee considered a report (Agenda Item 8) concerning Planning 

Application 16/01489/OUTMAJ in respect of the erection of 75 dwellings with 
associated access and landscaping with open space improvements at Coley 
Farm, Stoney Lane, Cold Ash.

2. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Bernard Clark, Parish Council 
representative, Victoria Koroleva and Keith Benjamin, objectors, and Mark 
Norgate, Rebecca Humble, Ben Thomas and Glenn Charles, applicant/agents, 
addressed the Committee on this application.

3. Michael Butler introduced the report and update report to Members, which took 
account of all the relevant policy considerations and other material considerations. 
In conclusion the report detailed that the proposal was acceptable and a 
conditional approval was justifiable. Officers strongly recommended the 
Committee grant planning permission

4. Councillor Hilary Cole queried which settlement boundary the application related 
to. Michael Butler responded that the application was outside of Newbury’s 
settlement boundary. Councillor Hilary Cole stated that the settlement boundary 
was redefined by the Housing Sites Allocation Development Plan Document (HSA 
DPD) and asked whether the site would be inside or outside. Michael Butler 
advised that the definition of the settlement boundary was a separate process to 
the DPD. 

5. Councillor Paul Bryant noted that the consultation response from the Fire Service 
had been abbreviated in the committee report. The original letter raised a concern 
that there were no public mains. Councillor Bryant asked whether this was a 
planning matter or the responsibility of Thames Water to rectify. Michael Butler 
explained that an application was unlikely to receive permission if it could not be 
safely implemented and that was why authorities such as the Fire Service and 
Thames Water were consulted. Thanes Water had responded that the water 
infrastructure capacity was adequate. Councillor Bryant queried the disparity 
between the two responses; Michael Butler offered reassurance that any planning 
permission could not be implemented until there was suitable fresh and waste 
water infrastructure.

6. Councillor Jeff Beck raised a query regarding a reference to an LVIA on page 277 
of the agenda. Michael Butler explained that a Landscape Visual Impact 

Page 70



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

Assessment (LVIA) had been completed for the amended plans and the 
consultant’s response was outlined in the update report. 

7. Councillor Beck sought clarification on where collected water would be released 
into main water courses, noting drainage issues on Fir Tree Lane and whether 
engineers were satisfied that the bunds on the proposed site would be sufficient. 
Stuart Clark responded that officers were satisfied that the site included sufficient 
bunds to hold rain water on site. The Flood Risk Assessment had calculated the 
run off and volume in accordance with the technical standards for sustainable 
drainage and climate change. All water associated with a 1:100 flood event, plus 
40% to account for climate change could be stored on site. There would be an 
outlet which released the stored water at the greenfield rate into the water course; 
the River Lambourn. Overall, engineers were satisfied that that the proposals 
would ensure that the development was safe and it would not increase risk 
elsewhere. 

8. Councillor Beck questioned the morning peak hour traffic movement calculations 
of 29 cars during 8am and 9am and stated that he did not believe there would be 
only a 3% increase in traffic on the B4009. Councillor Beck further raised the point 
that roundabouts along Kiln Lane were already pressured. Paul Goddard 
responded that the figures provided were projections produced by modelling 
software which was connected to a national database. The projections were in line 
with all residential developments and covered only 8am to 9pm, not all morning 
traffic movements. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) guidance 
stated that a development should only be refused if the likely impact on traffic was 
severe. Paul Goddard stated that he did not advise that a 3% increase in traffic 
was a severe impact.

9. Councillor Beck enquired upon the content of the Travel Plan. Paul Goddard 
advised that the applicant would need to provide that information. 

10. Councillor James Fredrickson queried the statement at paragraph 5.2 of the 
committee report that Stoney Lane would be widened to a minimum of 5.5m. 
Michael Butler explained that at points, Stoney Lane was wider than 5.5m so the 
parts which were narrower than 5.5m around the proposed development would be 
widened to that minimum standard.

11. Councillor Anthony Pick noted that at the site visit he had observed a substantial 
slope from West to East and that there was a ditch along the highway. He asked 
how the water from the highway would be managed once the ditch had been lost 
as part of the road widening. Stuart Clark explained that there was a condition 
attached to the recommended permission that the water run-off from Stoney Lane 
would need to be assessed and accommodated within the site’s drainage scheme. 

12. Bernard Clark, in addressing the Committee raised the following points:

 The Parish Council was unanimously against the proposal due to its impact on 
the countryside, inadequate access, flooding risk and its unsustainability.

 The proposed development was in contravention of Cold Ash Parish Council’s 
Parish Plan. 

 The Parish Council understood the need to identify sites for housing and in its 
Parish Plan had located in-fill sites for 60 houses. 

 There was a nearby site at Henwick for which there had been an application 
for 225 houses. 

Page 71



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

 The proposed development would see 75 houses being built on a site the size 
of four football pitches, in his view a city level of density. 

 There were not the shops, schools or General Practitioners in the area to 
support the residents of 75 new dwellings. 

 The slope of the site was 1:10. 

 There would be 130-140 cars associated with the new houses, 80-90 of which 
would use Stoney Lane at peak times. 

 Stoney Lane was a single carriageway at 10 points.
13. At the Chairman’s request, Michal Butler clarified that on the Henwick site there 

was an application for 275 dwellings, reduced to 225 in the amended plans; this 
application had been refused and was being heard at a public inquiry. An identical 
application had been submitted and was likely to be refused under delegated 
authority. 

14. Councillor Adrian Edwards asked whether the Parish Plan indicated the location of 
the preferred sites for housing and if it had been approved by West Berkshire 
Council. Mr Clark responded that it demonstrated where housing was earmarked 
and the Plan had been approved by the Council. 

15. Victoria Koroleva and Keith Benjamin, in addressing the Committee raised the 
following points:

 The application was not in line with the Council’s own policies. HSA3 had 
stated there would be one access on Stoney Lane and one to the South East 
of the site, not two on Stoney Lane. 

 The proposals would increase the number of accidents and place the existing 
140 households on Stoney Lane at risk. 

 The highway widening would remove established hedgerows over 100 years 
old. 

 If the application was approved lives would be lost. 

 Between 8am and 9am there was often a 45 minute queue.

 500 residents had signed a petition and the Parish Council objected, in 
addition to the letters of objection received by the Council. 

 The development would harm the visual appearance of the area. 

 There was not sufficient traffic mitigation and the development would worsen 
traffic by urbanisation. 

 It was not clear who would maintain the drainage system in the long term.

 The open site within the site was not sufficient or adequate. 

 Residents had raised objections throughout the call for sites and development 
of the DPD. A lot of people felt the development would have an adverse effect 
on the local area.

16. Councillor Beck sought more information on the objectors’ views of the proposed 
access to the site. Ms Koroleva explained that in HSA3, it had been stated an 
additional access to the south east of the site was required, now there would be 
two hazard points on Stoney Lane. Michael Butler advised that in the Local Plan, 
sites were allocated but were not completely analysed. HSA3 offered a suggestion 

Page 72



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

but not a requirement that there should be a south easterly access to Laud Close. 
While officers agreed it would be appropriate to have an access at that location, it 
was under third party ownership and to obtain the land required it would cost 30% 
of the Gross Development Value. Therefore if the south east access was insisted 
upon there would be no affordable housing. 

17. Councillor Edwards sought clarification on the location of the open space. Michael 
Butler advised that it was outside of the application site and the Council sought a 
Section 106 contribution to improve an existing area of open space. Officers were 
satisfied that there was sufficient open space in the site. 

18. Councillor James Cole asked what justification the objectors had to refer to Stoney 
Lane as dangerous. Ms Koroleva responded that it was a single track with 
obscured visibility used by drivers, horse riders and walkers. There had been five 
accidents in five months. Paul Goddard commented that officers agreed that the 
lane in its current form was not suitable, hence the widening proposed. 

19. Mark Norgate, Rebecca Humble, Ben Thomas and Glenn Charles, in addressing 
the Committee:

 The developer was a Newbury based company and had owned the site since 
2003. 

 They had followed the Council’s processes by submitting it under the HSA 
DPD’s call for sites and had waited to submit the application until the DPD was 
at an advanced stage. 

 The committee report outlined that substantial weight could now be afforded to 
the Council’s emerging DPD. 

 The developer had consulted officers from Planning, Highways, Drainage and 
Open Space in designing the scheme. 

 They had responded positively to consultees and members of the public. 

 The development was 40% affordable housing and would help the Council 
achieve its housing supply target. 

 Circular walkways around the site would connect areas of open space and 
existing trees would be preserved.

 Existing open space would be improved. 

 They had worked with Highways to find a solution to provide safe access to 
the site in a way which retained the character of the area and reinforced the 
existing hedgerow. 

20. Councillor Bryant asked whether the applicant had consulted Thames Water. Mr 
Norgate responded that their consultants did this on the developer’s behalf as they 
needed to know before submitting an application that it would be possible to build 
the development. Mr Norgate also stated that there would be fire hydrants on the 
site. 

21. Councillor Bryant enquired whether it was intended to use sprinklers on the site. 
Mr Norgate advised that this would be considered under the detailed design. 

22. Councillor Beck asked what was intended for the Travel Plan. Mr Thomas advised 
that it had not yet been drafted but would include cycle parking and the footway 
would link to the residential area to the South. 

Page 73



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

23. Councillor Pick enquired how the drainage system would work. Michael Butler 
reminded the committee that before them was an outline application and a number 
of predevelopment conditions were recommended which would deal with the 
reserved matters. All bodies would be consulted about the further detail submitted 
and if officers were not satisfied that the reserved matters were dealt with 
appropriately they would not recommend their approval. It was unfair to ask 
technical questions of an outline application and the development would not be 
built if or until the conditions were discharged appropriately.

24. Councillor Edwards noted that there was no information on a wildlife survey in the 
committee report. Mr Norgate advised that an ecological survey was completed as 
part of the DPD process. Michael Butler advised that Natural England had been 
consulted and raised no objections. 

25. Councillor Garth Simpson, speaking as Ward Member, in addressing the 
Committee raised the following points:

 The site was a late shoe-in to the DPD call for sites and the proposal would 
burst open HSA3 and the associated main modifications. 

 The site was 0.6 to 0.8 hectares in size, wet year round and only suitable for 
dog walking. 

 The proposal was a Trojan horse to a further application in the area. 

 Street lighting would urbanise the development. 

 Slides 1 to 14 of the committee presentation demonstrated the sites position in 
the countryside and its beauty. 

 A resident of Stone Copse for 39 years, he would have to factor in half an hour 
to travel the 2.7m to the Council’s offices with an extra 15 minutes in times of 
congestion. 

 There was a flooding risk and this was experienced in 2007. 

 The Met Office was warning of another event in 10 years. 

 The flood mitigation conditions needed to be determined at the outline stage; 
there should be a robustly maintained larger pond.

 There were issues with the transport assessment and it was not compliant with 
government guidance. 

 Coley Farm was remote and the Travel Plan was delusional. 

 The Kiln Road roundabout was stressed and the Council recognised that it 
was badly configured. It was currently at 89% capacity and the proposed 
development would increase that by 3%. 

 More houses would lead to injuries. Decision makers would have blood on 
their hands if they took the moral hazard and approved the application.

 He would like a named vote on the application. 
26. Councillor James Cole asked to see the presentation slides that had been referred 

to. Councillor Simpson indicated slide 7, which demonstrated the area north of 
Cold Ash was the same quality as the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 
but did not receive the privileges of being AONB. Michael Butler explained that the 
AONB was designated in 1973 and if the site had been of AONB quality it would 
have been designated as such in the original designation or via an amendment. 

Page 74



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

27. Councillor Fredrickson asked what particular concerns residents had come 
forward with regarding the traffic impact. Councillor Simpson replied that a 3% 
increase in traffic took the capacity of the Kiln Road roundabout to 92% which was 
just shy of a severe rating. The traffic assessment was completed on the basis of 
no additional sites in the area. Traffic from Compton and Bucklebury would all use 
the B4009 to access Newbury.

28. Councillor James Cole asked whether Councillor Simpson was satisfied with the 
sustainability analysis. Councillor Simpson responded that he did not agree with 
the key destinations used in the traffic modelling and the gradient was outside the 
Department for Transport guidance for cycling.

29. Councillor Edwards, noting that Councillor Simpson had lived near to the site for 
39 years, asked whether he thought flood water would run off the road onto the 
development site. Stuart Clark advised that there was a condition in the update 
sheet to ensure the development managed that run off water effectively. 

30. Councillor Pick asked for the road traffic accident (RTA) statistics in the area. Paul 
Goddard explained that the official statistics were provided by Thames Valley 
Police and although the DfT recommended a 3 year history, officers had 
considered 5 years of history. Incidents were not recorded as an RTA if there was 
no personal injury. There were no RTAs resulting in personal injury on Stoney 
Lane in the preceding 3 years. There were 5 RTAs resulting in slight personal 
injury on the B4009 mini roundabout in the preceding 5 years but this was not 
unusual for any junction and often caused by drivers making poor choices. 
Officers did not deny that there was already congestion on the B4009 but advice 
remained, in accordance with the NPPF, that the impact on traffic in the area 
would not be severe. 

31. Councillor Hilary Cole noted that the site was in the DPD and was passed by a 
majority on 5 November 2015. 

32. Councillor von Celsing stated that whilst she appreciated the site was in the DPD 
she did not like the application. She travelled to the site visit south along Stoney 
Lane and had to stop and reverse to allow cars to pass. Councillor von Celsing 
expressed the view that the lane was unsuitable and there would be little open 
space on the site. She knew that houses were needed and she knew it was in the 
policy but thought it was a horrible site. 

33. Councillor Fredrickson queried whether there was a variance in the statistics and if 
it might be possible the impact on traffic in the area had been underestimated. 
Paul Goddard responded that the projected impact was based on the planning 
application and traffic survey completed in November and December 2015. Traffic 
modelling was based on growth over 5 years and committed developments.

34. Councillor Beck noted that this would be the last opportunity to be satisfied the 
drainage and its maintenance was adequately addressed. Stuart Clark advised 
that the conditions stipulated the requirement for the developer to submit a 
maintenance plan to cover the lifetime of the drainage system and the responsible 
party. The Flooding and Waste Management Act 2010 meant that the Local 
Authority had to place any water retaining feature on a register which recorded 
what management would be required and engineers from the Local Authority 
would inspect the feature. There would also be an option to designate the feature 
so that it would be an offence to damage or alter it. Councillor Beck asked if the 
responsible party went bust, what powers the Council would have to complete the 
works and back charge for them. Stuart Clark  responded that he expected that a 

Page 75



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

management company would act on behalf of the residents unless the feature was 
adopted by the Council.

35. Councillor James Cole stated that he supported Councillor von Celsing’s views 
and stated that computer models were tools but did not replace lived experience of 
traffic congestion in the area. His view was that nothing good could come of 
permitting the development and the site should not have been included in the 
DPD.
The Committee adjourned at 9.45pm and reconvened at 9.46pm. 

36. Councillor Hilary Cole explained that the meeting was adjourned because Michael 
Butler sought her permission to summarise the application at the end of the 
debate. Councillor Hooker advised that he had already agreed to this as the 
Committee’s Chairman. Members of the Committee expressed frustration at this 
interruption to the meeting.

37. Councillor Hooker proposed that the Committee continue the meeting past 10pm 
in accordance with Rule 7.6.2 of the Council’s Constitution . This was seconded by 
Councillor Hilary Cole and carried by a majority at the vote with one abstention. 

38. Councillor Bryant stated that he agreed with Councillor Simpson that the site was 
in lovely countryside but stated that Sandleford and other DPD sites also were. 
Other sites might also have traffic issues. Councillor Bryant expressed concern 
that if the Committee refused the application on the grounds of traffic and 
countryside, they could be saying they would turn down another 20 or 30 sites. 
There was a population pressure and the Council needed to ensure the delivery of 
housing against its quota. Councillors had spent hours debating the sites in 
designing the DPD and it would be a considerable problem if they backed down 
from those decisions. 

39. Councillor Bryant proposed that the Committee accept the officer’s 
recommendations to grant planning permission. This was seconded by Councillor 
Paul Hewer.

40. Councillor Beck stated that he lived near to the site and had no objection in 
principle to development but the number of houses was excessive and the 
potential traffic impact was unacceptable. 

41. Councillor Fredrickson stated that he understood the wider context of the Council’s 
planning policies and that more information would emerge over time. The level of 
congestion was close to severe and the Committee should not underestimate the 
Ward Member’s experience. 

42. Councillor Pick stated he would be more comfortable if more detailed information 
was available. 

43. Michael Butler summarised that if was officers’ strong recommendation that the 
Committee approve the application. It was a Greenfield site outside the settlement 
boundary and in ordinary circumstances one house would be refused. It was a 
Council proposed site and had undergone a lengthy process with an Inspector. 
Although it was not at a final stage, in accordance with the NPPF, the DPD could 
now be given substantial weight. An appeal was being heard in the Council 
Chamber regarding a proposed 500-600 dwelling development in Thatcham and 
the Council’s 5 year housing supply was under debate. If the Committee refused 
its own allocated site there would be an immediate impact on the Council’s ability 
to defend appeals on the basis of a five-year housing supply. The Council would 

Page 76



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE - 23 NOVEMBER 2016 - MINUTES

also be liable for appellants’ costs. If the Committee were minded to refuse the 
application it would be referred to the District Planning Committee. 

44. Councillor Hooker invited the Committee to vote on the proposal of Councillor 
Bryant, as seconded by Councillor Hewer to accept officer’s recommendation. At 
the vote this motion failed with two abstentions from Councillor Hilary Cole and 
Councillor Pick.

45. Councillor Hooker sought an alternative proposal. Councillor Beck proposed the 
Committee reject the officer’s recommendation and refuse planning permission. 
This was seconded by Councillor von Celsing. At the vote this motion was carried 
with two abstentions from Councillor Hilary Cole and Councillor Edwards.

RESOLVED that the application should be refused contrary to Officers recommendation 
and that the matter should be referred to the District Planning Committee because of the 
policy implications.
Reasons:
 Traffic impact

 Potential SUDS issues

 Landscape impact

 Lack of agreed s106 planning obligation

40. Appeal Decisions relating to Western Area Planning Committee
Members noted the outcome of appeal decisions relating to the Western Area.

(The meeting commenced at 5.30 pm and closed at 10.10 pm)

CHAIRMAN …………………………………………….

Date of Signature …………………………………………….

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



Appendix 4.

Proposed reasons for refusal on application 16/01489/outmaj.

1.The applicant has failed to complete a s106 planning obligation, to deliver the 
required affordable housing on site, the s278 highways works, and the commuted 
public open space sums. Accordingly it is contrary to policies CS5 and CS6 in the 
Council’s Adopted Core Strategy 2006 to 2016, the advice in the NPPF of 2012 and 
the advice in the NPPG of 2014. It is thus unacceptable. 

2.   The Council is not satisfied that the level of projected traffic arising from the  
development, especially at peak periods, will be acceptable, having regard to the 
already congested highway network to the south of the application site. Accordingly, 
having regard to the advice in bullet point 3 of para 32 of the NPPF the impact is 
considered to be severe and so unacceptable being contrary to the advice in policy 
CS13 in the Council’s Core Strategy of 2006 to 2026. 

3.    The Council considers that the level of visual harm arising from the proposed 75 
dwellings on this elevated site, important to the north east setting of Newbury, will be 
unacceptable, having regard to the high inherent quality of the local area. 
Accordingly it is considered contrary to policies CS18 and CS19 in the West 
Berkshire Core Strategy of 2006 to 2026, and the advice in para 109 of the NPPF. It 
is thus unacceptable. 

4.  The Council is not satisfied that the proposed SUDS works associated with the 
application in question will be sufficient to mitigate the harm that may be caused in 
the future in terms of both on and off site flooding. This in turn will be harmful to local 
amenity and contrary to policy CS16 in the West Berkshire Core Strategy of 2006 to 
2026, and the advice in para 103 of the NPPF. It is thus unacceptable.  

DC

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 80


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. & Parish: 16/01489/OUTMAJ Land at Coley Farm, Stoney Lane, Cold Ash
	16.01489 map
	Appendix 1 - Main agenda report - Coley Farm.
	Appendix 2 - update report for Coley Farm
	Appendix 3--wap minutes--draft .
	Appendix 4 - reasons for refusal - Coley Farm.


